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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RS

2024
—E-mE
HK$’000
BT T

48,042
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 75 i

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group A N AAREBARBER AR KERE 2 %24 -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published EZELBEHME X IHESFED B Z2EEX
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not  BFf§3R %K o A B2 I F &K & Bz i 15 &
form part of the audited financial statements. 285 o

Results e

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+-ALEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
“E-TE ZE--F —T--f ZE-ZHF “ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT ABTr BT BETR ENTx

Revenue hes 35,348 36,492 36,381 53,037 48,042
Loss for the year FEBE (25,738) (14,312) (27,333) (28,900) (31,846)
Assets and Liabilities EENERE

As at 31 December
R+=A=t+-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
B L . “To=F —ZE-ME
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BETT A%Tr BETT

B 572,298 547,198 530,725 417,747 379,831
& (250,286) (238,918) (249,797) (165,273)  (159,178)

Total assets &
Total liabilities &

Shareholders’ funds REES 322,012 308,280 280,928 252,474 220,653
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General Performance

The global economy in 2024 carried both hopes of recovery and faced
numerous challenges of uncertainties. In the post pandemic era,
while global economy gradually rebounds the path to recovery is not
smooth. The international political, economic, technological, cultural
and security landscape continued to undergo profound changes
with the ongoing Russo-Ukrainian conflict, instability in the Middle
East and the shift of developed countries’ policies towards trade
protectionism which overlapped with uncertainties in the monetary
policy of the US Federal Reserve, leading to an uncertain global
economic environment. In this global economic context, China’s
economy remained stable in 2024 with GDP grew by 5% year-on-
year supported by stimulus policies and targeted reforms. However
weakened external demand, subdued consumer spending, sluggish
property market and a weak RMB continued to weigh on its economic
activities.

The Group’s core businesses are based in Hong Kong and Macau
both of which had GDP growth rate for the full year in 2024 of 2.5%
and 8.8% respectively. The growth momentum was mainly driven
by the rebound in the tourism sector benefitting from the Central
Government’s support in Individual Visit Scheme. Nevertheless,
despite the tourism recovery, low unemployment and wage growth
boosting consumption, the local economies in particular the retalil
markets remained weak due to intense competition from nearby
markets and shifting spending patterns of residents and tourists. The
strong HKD and ease of cross border shopping further discouraged
local spending.

Interest rates remained relatively high throughout 2024. Although US
Federal Reserve changed its course in September 2024 to cut federal
funds rates by 50 basis points and then by another 25 basis points
in each of the next two months, the federal rate cutting cycle was
paused in January 2025 up till the present keeping federal fund rate
steady at 4.25%-4.5%. Persistently high borrowing cost continued
to impact the Group’s operations. Partial repayment of the bank loan
was made in 2023 to reduce the finance cost and the banking facilities
were renewed in Q4 2024 at the same terms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the Group’s net loss increased by
10% to approximately HK$31,846,000 after netting the effects for (i)
decrease in gross profit of approximately HK$6,647,000 compared
to the same period last year; (ii) decrease in other income of
HK$3,413,000 compared to the same period last year; (iii) decrease
in fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$9,473,000 compared to the same period last year; (iv) loss on
disposal of investment properties of HK$4,140,000 (2023: nil); (v) no
loss on disposal of subsidiary was incurred in the current year (2023:
HK$900,000); and (vi) decrease in finance cost of HK$3,432,000
compared to the same period last year.

The Group’s revenue decreased approximately 9% to HK$48,042,000
in 2024. It was mainly attributed to decrease in hair styling revenue
and hospitality services income by about 19% and 7% respectively.
Gross profit for the year under review decreased approximately 31%
to HK$15,064,000. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in
gross profit from the above business segments.

Other income decreased by 76% to HK$1,078,000. It was mainly
due to (i) decrease in bank interest income due to repayment of
bank loan which was secured against bank fixed deposits; and (ii)
exchange gain of HK$992,000 recorded in last year but exchange
loss of HK$13,000 was incurred in the current year. The reduction
in aggregate was partially offset by the gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of HK$320,000 for the year under review.

Finance cost decreased by HK$3,432,000 due to partial repayment
of bank loan in the latter 2023 and lower interest rate commenced
in Q4 2024 when US Federal Reserve for the first time since March
2020 has cut interest rate in September 2024 followed by two more
cuts in the remaining year. The administrative expenses decreased by
HK$1,304,000 to HK$28,545,000. It was mainly attributed to reduced
expenditures in administrative staff cost, repair and maintenance cost,
legal and professional fee, motor vehicle expenses and depreciation
on furniture, fixture and equipment as a result of the Group’s stringent
measures to cut cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & B J& & i

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$220,653,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$0.68. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$379,831,000 and HK$159,178,000
respectively.

Property Investments Business

During the year under review, total rental income contributed
from Hong Kong and Macau investment properties amounted to
HK$3,174,000 increased by approximately 14% compared to last
year. This was mainly attributed to the rental contribution during the
year under review from a Macau retail shop which had been vacant
since February 2023 and eventually leased out towards the end of the
year. Return from leasing the investment properties was about 4%
comparing the gross rental income and original cost of investments.

In addition to the loss amounting to HK$4,140,000 incurred on
disposal of investment properties, the fair value loss on investment
properties of HK$5,000,000 drove up the segment loss to
HK$14,779,000 for the year under review and total valuation of the
investment properties dropped to HK$87,100,000 as at 31 December
2024.

There is no acquisition of investment properties during the year
under review. Two Taikoo Shing properties were disposed of at loss
amounting to HK$4,140,000. Hong Kong’s residential properties in
the secondary market faced numerous headwinds in the recent years
from the sluggish local economy and the high interest environment.
Demand had been dampened with increased borrowing costs and
competition from launching of newly completed residential estates
therefore plunging both transaction volume and prices. The disposals
at considerations of about 20% or more over their initial acquisition
costs were an opportunity for the Group to realize its investment in the
properties and enhance the financial position of the Group.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s retail shop
in Sheung Wan and residential units in Taikoo Shing before disposal
decreased approximately 20% to HK$957,000. The decrease was
attributed to disposal of two Taikoo Shing properties during the year
under review. The investment yield on the remaining retail shop in
Sheung Wan was approximately 7% when compared gross rental
income to original cost of investment. The retail sector showed signs
of recovery in early 2024 driven by resurgence in tourism. Despite
this promising start, the market soon experienced a downturn due
to the decline in domestic spending from increased outbound travel.
At the same time Mainland tourists dominating the inbound visitors
are becoming more cost conscious and shifting their consumption
pattern. In the 1Q 2025, the retail lease was renewed with the existing
tenant at the same rental rate with rental concessions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental income from Macau properties increased by approximately
39% to HK$2,217,000, it was mainly due to rental contribution
starting February 2024 from a Macau retail shop which had been
vacant for almost a year even though the rental rate dropped by about
49% of the pre-pandemic level. The office lease which expired in July
2024 was renewed for another year with an increased effective rental
of about 26%. There remains one office unit which has been vacant
since Q2 2021. The two year lease for the residential property entered
into in 2022 also matured in October 2024. After much negotiation,
the lease was renewed for one year with incremental rental rate of
about 28% given rents of the mass residential flats surged by 13.7%
year on year by the Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) Macau Property Index.
An average yield of about 4% comparing the gross rental income and
original cost of investments on Macau properties was recorded.

The Group’s core business in property investments is in Macau.
Stepping into 2025, some Macau leading realtors commented
that outlook for the property market was not optimistic due to
various factors including downturn in global economy, structural
changes in local sector, slow recovery of small medium enterprises,
growing competition from cities in Mainland China as well as Sino-
US tensions. But with improvements in Macau’s tourism industry
and the planning of more shows and events this year, JLL Macau
forecasts retail shop rents will climb up by 5% while capital values
remain stable. Meanwhile office rent, prices and vacancy rates have
begun to stabilize after undergoing significant adjustments following
the government moved out of the private office market to their
own office buildings a few years ago. On the other hand, Macau’s
residential property prices are expected to decline further this year
given abundant supply and subdued demand while the rental market
is expected to maintain an upward momentum. The downward
trajectory in the home prices is due to a lack of overseas investment
and cautious investor sentiment, exacerbated by high interest rates
and economic uncertainties.

Hair Styling Business

Turnover of this segment dropped by approximately 19% to
HK$12,864,000 when compared to the same period last year of
which turnover on service income decreased 19% with the resignation
of a high taking stylist in August 2023. At the same time product
sales also decreased 16%. Nonetheless there was segment profit of
HK$12,000 instead of segment loss of HK$1,275,000 the year before.
The significant decrease in revenue was compensated by (i) greatly
reduced depreciation on right-of-use assets as a result of impairment
loss on right-of-use assets provided in 2023, and (ii) decrease in staff
cost from staff turnover.
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Success of hair salons depends heavily on skill and professionalism
of staff. Our hair styling business experienced a difficult year in
2024 with staff turnover and skilled labour shortage. We have not
succeeded to recruit new talented hair stylists to recover the income
loss from leavers as well as keen competition from established
salons. To sustain the business, the Group will explore new business
opportunities to widen the revenue stream from both existing and
potential customers.

Hair styling business in Hong Kong is dynamic and ever evolving,
driven by beauty-conscious population and growing demand for
personalized grooming services. The city’s representation as a
regional hub for fashion and beauty lends support to steady inflow
of customers seeking premium services. Recent trends show a rise
in premium salon offering niche services like scalp treatments and
natural eco-friendly products due to the consumers’ increasing
awareness about the type of ingredients used in the hair care
products with concerns over long-term health risks. In Hong Kong
there is a strong emphasis on personal appearance and fashion.
Therefore we see the expansion of hair extension services with the
newly introduced product line an opportunity to boost the segment
revenue. The new product line ‘feathered hair extension’ can instantly
add volume to one’s hair, creating a fuller and more voluminous
look. They can be catered in diverse hair colour options to deliver
a fashionable and youthful image. Other than taking time to grow
the new product line, marketing is key to attracting customers
and building a loyal customer base. During the year the Group
deployed capital resources to train our hair stylists to ramp up their
social media and online presence, better utilizing platforms such as
Instagram, Facebook and Xiaohongshu etc. to showcase their work,
promotions and customer testimonials enabling them to engage with
potential customers. Offering free services and partnering with beauty
influencers and local personalities are another way considered to
boost our salon’s visibility.

For a retail business, location with easy accessibility and visualization
are crucial to attract new customers. The lease on our current
operating premises will soon expire in the latter half of the year.
Negotiation on renewal has started with the landlord with demands for
reduced rental and propositions to strengthen our visual appearance
given the salon is not located within the traffic hotspots of the
shopping mall. We shall be looking forward to the landlord’s support
and collaboration in stimulating the business.
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Hospitality Service Business

During the year Hong Kong hosted 44.5 million inbound visitors
increased by about 31% from 20283 as increased connectivity and
expansion of the Mainland cities on the Individual Visit Scheme took
effect. Mainland China remained the biggest source market making
up about 76% and 67% of the inbound visitors and overnight visitors
respectively. Average occupancy was up by 3% year on year to 85%
and even higher at 89% for Medium Tariff hotels. In terms of district,
our hotel operation at Yau Ma Tei was in the well performing Yau Tsim
Mong District with occupancies in the 87%-93% range. Unfortunately
the robust tourism numbers did not translate to anticipated uplift in
hotel performance even though occupancy edged up but room rates
faced downward pressure. Average daily rate was down by 4.5%
compared to the year before as cost-conscious travellers dominated
the market.

Turnover of the segment decreased by 7% to HK$29,246,000 and
incurred segment loss of HK$3,276,000. Decrease in turnover was
mainly attributed to decrease in revenue of two existing guesthouses.
Turnover of both Sheung Wan guesthouse and North Point hostel
decreased 3% and 14% respectively compared to the same period last
year. Average daily rate for Sheung Wan guesthouse and North Point
hostel decreased by 2% and 14% respectively compared to the same
period last year while overall maintaining the high occupancy rate of
over 90%. The newly operated Yau Ma Tei Hotel commanded higher
room rate being unique in the market for its sizeable rooms fitted with
a separated seating area and a kitchenette to target a niche in family
travellers. Other than contributing to the segment revenue and contrary
to the other two guesthouses and the market statistics, the overall
average daily rate for the year under review increased by 4% compared
to the same period last year. There was segment loss of HK$3,276,000
instead of segment profit of HK$3,540,000 last year. Segment loss was
mainly attributed to the increase in depreciation on right-of-use assets
of North Point hostel which was substantially low in the corresponding
period last year due to impairment provision on right-of-use assets
made for in year 2022, and increase in depreciation on leasehold land
and buildings.
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With the broadening of Mainland and Non-Mainland source markets
of which South Korea, UAE, India, Japan, Spain and Russia had
during the year manifested strong growth at close to 100% or more
and the recent opening of the city’s third runway, inbound tourism
and overnight visitors are expected to increase, providing impetus
to the hospitality sector. At the same time, key tourism initiatives
and international events will accelerate the momentum. The Policy
Address in October 2024 earmarked sports, culture and tourism
as key growth pillars with imminent release of the ‘Development
Blueprint for Hong Kong Tourism Industry 2.0’. One of the objectives
is to promote Hong Kong as an international tourism hub and core
location for multi-destination tourism showcasing what the city has to
offer from arts, eco-tourism, sports, music and conferences with the
mission to implement ‘tourism is everywhere’.

During the year the Group entered into lease renewals for the
premises in North Point and Yau Ma Tei to continue its hospitality
services businesses. Going forward it is anticipated the hotel and
wider hospitality sector remains challenging. The hotel sector now
operates in a different environment with different demand drivers
and expectations. The market continues to attract more experience-
driven, budget conscious travellers. Hotel operators are working
hard to curate the best packages to attract guests. To capitalize
on the fast growing emerging source markets, marketing strategies
online and offline would be adjusted to better target these markets.
The Group will continue to strengthen its market position through
strategic initiatives and maintain stringent cost control to keep its
competitiveness. In the 2025 agenda, the Group will proactively
explore value-enhancing opportunities and consider relocating one
current operation to newer premises and location with easy access to
major attractions when the lease expires.

Securities Investments

Hong Kong stocks in which the Group invested kicked off 2024 with
a lackluster start from Hang Seng Index 17,000 and hit its 14,794
low of the year on 22 January as concerns over a sluggish recovery
and ongoing monetary tightening kept investors wary. Nevertheless
the stock market ended 2024 with a significant gain of 18% after a
four year streak, boosted by growth in asset management sector and
market connectivity amidst improving investor sentiment. The most
notable rally ran from late September to early October when Mainland
Government announced sweeping stimulus policies to revive the
economy. The fair value loss for the year under review decreased
substantially 82% from about twelve millions to two millions on the
securities investments held at the year end.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$43,000,000 (31 December
2023: HK$51,098,000). The securities investments portfolio
comprised of Hong Kong blue chips and REITs with good dividend
yield and liquidity. During the year the Group disposed at prevailing
market prices some blue-chip stocks in public utilities, financial
institutions, and real estate sectors. The disposals allowed the Group
to reallocate its resources and diversified the securities investment
into US technology stock considering that technological innovation
is an important engine for future development with potential lucrative
capital gain. Dividend income from securities investments amounted
to HK$2,678,000 was recorded in the reviewing year.

Heading into 2025, the overall liquidity of Hong Kong capital market
is anticipated to improve under the stimulus economic policies of
the Central government and a potential upside of Hang Seng Index
from 2024 driven by better corporate earnings growth. As for the
US equities market, despite elevated valuations the expected two
years earnings growth remains strong across most US indexes and
sectors, suggesting that earnings improvement could justify current
price levels. General expectation is that in the coming year technology
stocks are likely to perform well due to strong earnings momentum
and in turn will enhance the Group’s securities investment portfolio.

The Group’s significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at 31
December 2024 are as follows:
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Note 1: Link Real Estate Investment Trust is a Hong Kong-based real
estate investment trust (Link REIT). The investment objectives
of Link REIT are to deliver sustainable growth and to create
long-term value for its unit holders. It invests and manages a
diversified portfolio of properties, including retail facilities, car
parks, offices and logistics centres spanning from China’s tier
one cities (Beijing, Shanghai), Greater Bay Area (Hong Kong,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen) to Singapore, United Kingdom’s
London and Australia’s Sydney and Melbourne.

Note 2: The Group will hold the investment for dividend income and
to reduce the investment when the unit price increases to a
reasonable level.

Property Project Management Business

During the year under review, no income was recorded and there was
no project completed or in progress due to renovation projects from
new home buyers were not secured amid the very sluggish property
market. Segment incurred a loss of HK$8,000 after the business
administrative expenses.

As the economy further recovers, we strive to revive the business
segment by collaborating with local renowned architect/interior
designer to explore into new projects.

Other Business Segments

The Group engaged in the money lending business through an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary, Century Legend Finance Limited
(“CLF”), which holds a money lenders license under the Money
Lenders Ordinance to carry out money lending business in Hong
Kong. During the year under review, the interest income and operating
loss generated in this segment were HK$80,000 (2023: HK$81,000)
and HK$4,000 (2023: Profit HK$1,000), respectively.

The money lender business recorded three unsecured personal loans.
There was no new loan made during the period under review. As of
two years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, the Group had not
incurred any impairment on the outstanding loan receivables.

Management had formulated a fundamental policy to establish its
internal control systems. The Group would adopt a prudent approach
and conduct regular reviews of the composition of the loans portfolio
and lending rates charged to each customer to maximize the return of
the money lending business as well as diversify the credit risk.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a cash and bank
balance of HK$12,410,000 and net current liabilities of
HK$81,957,000. The current ratio (calculated as the current
assets to the current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December
2024 was approximately 0.44 (31 December 2023: 0.47).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. The directors consider that the Group’s
exposure to the fluctuations in exchange rates was minimal.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment and
certain investment properties of the Group were pledged to
two banks to secure the bank borrowing of approximately
HK$120,769,000, which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bearing interest at floating rate. The Group did not have
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: Nil). There is no capital commitments as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total equity of
HK$220,653,000, fixed rate liability of HK$12,514,000, floating
rate liability of HK$120,769,000 and interest-free liabilities of
HK$25,895,000, representing 6%, 55% and 12% of the Group’s
total equity, respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated as the
total long term loan to the total shareholders’ equity) of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 was approximately 5% (31
December 20283: 4%).

Significant Investments, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group disposed
of two Taikoo Shing properties at an aggregate consideration
of HK$18,060,000 and recorded loss on disposals of
HK$4,140,000.
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VL.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed approximately
a total of 45 employees (2023: 44). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, total staff costs (excluding Directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$13,166,000
(2028: HK$13,005,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Dividend Policy

When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board needs to consider potential opportunities and risks
existing in the Company’s operation and development as well as
assess various factors, regardless of whether they are financial
or operational, internal or external, in the past or the future,
microeconomic or macroeconomic. The payment of dividends
will be made at the discretion of the Board. The Board may
decide the frequency of dividend payment and further declare
or recommend any special distributions. Dividend may be
declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means that
the Board considers appropriate. The payment of dividend is
also subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations
including the laws of Bermuda and the Company’s Bye-laws.
The Board will conduct supervision and review from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Board shall discuss
amendments to this policy when necessary.
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The Group anticipates that many of the trends and global economic
conditions observed in 2024 will continue into 2025 given the
delicate interplay of multiple macroeconomic factors including
inflation, interest rate policies, geopolitical tensions and supply
chain disruptions. The renewed Trump administration in US is likely
to introduce heightened volatility in sectors sensitive to trade and
global supply chains based on concerns his policies, particularly on
tariffs, could re-ignite inflation in the economy. In the 1Q of this year
there has been new tariffs announcement from time to time and an
additional 10% tariffs on China imports by US has already been taking
effect. To fight back the Beijing Government imposed retaliation tariffs
on US farm goods with immediate effect and vowed would fight a
trade war to the “bitter end”. Looking ahead the world economy
tends to be increasingly constrained by the uncertainties arisen
from the geopolitical tensions, higher interest rates and the potential
escalation trade conflicts especially between US and China which
could significantly interrupt the global trade and investment flows. No
doubt this would hinder the economic growth of both Mainland China
and the two special administrative regions of China.

On the positive side, the Mainland Government sets an ambitious
annual growth target of around 5% this year and has put in place
target policies including fiscal stimulus, monetary easing and support
for strategic sectors like digital economy to boost domestic demand.
The strengthened local demand of Mainland China could bring spill
over effect and benefit the Hong Kong and Macau economies. The
Chinese Government has supported to revive our tourism industry
by extending the Individual Visit Scheme (IVS) to more cities. In
addition beginning 2025 multiple-entry IVS were resumed for
Shenzhen residents and residence permit holders to visit Hong Kong
and the same policies apply to Zhuhai and Henggin residents for
visiting Macau. To capture the growth in visitor arrivals, Hong Kong
will host a series of large scale sports and entertainment events at
the Kai Tak Sports Park, seen as magnet for world-class events,
to boost the city’s culture, sports and tourism development. Over
in Macau, the city’s gaming concessionaires will ongoing invest
billions MOP dollars in non-gaming facilities and activities over the
ten years span of the 2023 gaming concession contract to support
the Macau government’s objectives to further develop and diversify
Macau’s economy. We have seen entertainment and events play an
important role in driving new and repeat visitors to Macau. All in all
these measures and government’s initiatives to promote tourism will
attract greater visitor numbers and provide more diversified travel
experience, in turn driving expanded foot traffic and tourist spending
and boosting the cities’ overall retail sentiment.
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The outlook of our hospitality segment remains challenging amid
prevailing headwinds which limit the pace of its recovery. The hotel
sector in Hong Kong is still impacted by the rise in the more cost-
conscious tourists. Furthermore the rising costs including the Hotel
Accommodation Tax implemented from 1 January 2025 place
pressure on hotel operators. On top with the lingering high interest
rate the Group’s financial costs would stay high and impact its overall
performance. To weather through the headwinds the Group will
embrace a cautious approach in its operations and stay vigilant to
potential risks while keeping a close watch on market trends to seek
out business strategies to improve performances in the respective
segments.

The Group always strives for being an outstanding member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
Each year the management would set targets to achieve goals of
community care and environment protection by actively participating
in various social services. In the future the Group shall continue to
seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its employees and
associates in building stronger and more vibrant communities.

During the year 2024, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services
for 17 years in succession

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 10 years in succession

- “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board
in “Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 6 consecutive
sessions

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 6 continuous sessions

- “Hong Kong Green Organization” accredited by Environmental
Campaign Committee since January 2018

- accredited as “Happy Company” (organized by Hong Kong
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council) since May 2020 and have committed to
develop corporate caring, wisdom, toughness and motivation so
as to provide a happy workplace for staff
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- Hong Kong Awards Environment Excellence by Environmental
Campaign Committee for pursuit of environmental initiatives and
participation since 2019

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a
more detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of our
activities during the year will be posted in our company’s website
later.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 63 to 66.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2024, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 6 to 19 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Environmental, Social and Governance Report during the
year.
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There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital
and no share option was granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (“Scheme”) during the
year under review. Details of the Company’s share capital and details
of the Scheme are set out in notes 30 and 31 respectively to the

financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as

a whole.

2. The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, professional or service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

38 Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 29,347,742 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this

annual report is 9%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the

Company.

58 The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter

period as the Board may determine.
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6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7 Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is

HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is 4 years (expiring on 29 May
2029).

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any of its Associated Corporation”. There is no
movement on share options during the year 2024.
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The following table discloses the Company’s share options held by
each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company
and the employees of the Company granted under the Scheme during

the year 2024:

Outstanding
at 1 January
2024

R
“RoRE
-R-H
AR

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

12,548,000

Exercise
price per
Name of participant Date of grant Validity period Share HK$
(Note)
BEARL RLAH e SRENTHE
(B
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syvia 14 September 2016 14 September 2016 to
Director and substantial -~ —E—-7ENA 13 September 2026
shareholder of the +HA 5 ENATERZ
Company ZEIENATER
LmsRT 19 September 2017 19 September 2017 to
EIRFLAERE  ZE-tEAA 18 September 2027
ThE “E-tEAATARR
ZECHEAATIR
3 October 2018 3 October 2018 to
“5-\F+AZR  20ctober 2028
“5-N\§+A=A%
ZECM\ETAZR
16 October 2019 16 October 2019 to
ZE-NEHA 15 Qctober 2029
A ZE-NEHATARE
ZEINETATERA
Total
alt
Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 14 September 2016, 19

September 2017, 3 October 2018 and 16 October 2019 (the date on which the
share options were granted) were HK$0.73, HK$0.69, HK$0.395 and HK$0.25

respectively.

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December

2024.
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Granted
during the
year 2024
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Number of share options
BREHA

Outstanding
Cancelled at
during the 31 December
year 2024 2024

Exercised
during the
year 2024

Lapsed
during the
year 2024
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“EIME CEIRE CEORS
MR FARN FRER
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3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

12,548,000
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At 31 December 2024, there is no distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution as dividend represented by
the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after compensating
the accumulated losses of HK$228,438,000. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to the
shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 67 and in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 172.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$120,769,000 (2023: HK$129,403,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$14,000 (2023: HK$13,000).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 30 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors, a director of subsidiaries
and the heads of functional departments as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
team were within the following bands:

AR A5 17 22
AEBRBERERRFEZ ERAREBE
REEHERNECE -

=43 ’*iﬁ/\ﬁ
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MEBRAENBEHNA

AEBERATESE WEARES LB
FETERRMERBEHKE -

ENRENSREEASEZHEHENT :

Number of individuals
A

2023
B4

Emolument bands B & &5 &
Nil = HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000

T ZF #%1,000,0007T

751,000,001 T 2 4 #2,000,0007T
7S #E2 000,001 T2 % #3,000,0007T
713,000,001 728 %4,000,0007T

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the
Group were attributable to hair styling and hospitality services. The
percentages of the sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 3%
— five largest customers combined 6%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 37%
— five largest suppliers combined 81%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 27 May 2025 to Friday,
30 May 2025 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21st Floor,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong by not later than 4:30p.m.
on Monday, 26 May 2025.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

Ms. Ho Ting Mei

Mr. Wu BinQuan

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation. Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel,
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia and Ms. Ho Ting Mei shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for two to three
years until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less
than one month prior written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as mentioned earlier, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.
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Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 51, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is
a director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”),
substantial shareholder of the Company, and a director of ST
Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79)
Investment.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 50, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed
as Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales
and leasing in the property investments business segment of the
Group. Ms. Tsang is also a director of ST (79) Investment, substantial
shareholder of the Company and a director of ST Investments Holding
Limited, the holding company of ST (79) Investment.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 67, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.

BITES

BHBRELE  BFERT—R - AAAANTE
FEBBIZET WA R—NAANERZEE
WEDREZFTRATESETRITHRER &
BEAKEZRBE  EBTREERE
B o WAEAAST (79) Investment Limited([ ST
(79) Investment ) WEF (KRR A2 EERE)
% ST Investments Holding Limited ( ST (79)

Investment Z 2R NG ) 2 ESE -
AREBRR > FEABEERBR AR IEZ
&5 PREEFAE - BEERE BB EE
IR E -

EBELzt BEFER TR AAARTHR

FREHEBRLEZHE RZE—ZFE
ZAERVTTES - KEMBEASEME
RESBZHERBERE - T2+ AST
(79) Investment EH(K R Al 2 T ZRE)
¥ ST Investments Holding Limited (ST (79)
Investment Z =R A A 2 B F ©

BLTHRNEREZZELHE

HEEES

ESEEdT o JJD)\$’$IEﬁ P B BRI —
MEEXHBQ BEHEE HERMS

WETE IE@*BF‘% BEBEAEBE T —FL
,%;%{0

KARLZL - BEANT LR R-AALF
MAREE YR -FTF ¢5%§T£ﬁ$ﬂ
EX-BRRTEEEEAEEZMBE - AL
BRNEEEHEHPIN - BRTAEEARNEEAHR
BEEHBESES -

RELTEMERERELEHRE - MAXKH
Al WEBRBRNERME S RTF B EH
BREEMB I AHEER T _F&R -



Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.

Ms. HO Ting Mei, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2020. She received her tertiary education
in United States and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree majoring
in marketing. Ms. HO has solid experience in both conventional
and digital marketing, business development, corporate relations
and digital media. Being an entrepreneur, her business covers
brand development as well as strategic and tactical marketing
with innovative concepts for corporates, products or services;
establishment of global distributing network and in addition, public
relation and corporate communication to source and build an
extensive network including government agencies and NGOs and
collaborate business opportunities across different industries on
new project or campaign development. She is also an independent
director of Intelligent Living Application Group Inc., a company listed
on the Nasdaq (stock code: ILAG).

Mr. WU BinQuan, aged 71, was appointed as an independent Non-
executive director in 2022. Mr. Wu holds professional diploma in
International Accounting from Beijing Economic Correspondence
University, professional diploma in Commercial Accounting from
Shenzhen University(Correspondence). He received his training
in hotel management in Mainland China and has over 28 years of
experience in hotel industry. He was financial controller, acting
general manager, project controller in finance for different hotels or
resorts in Guangzhou, Xian, Haikou, Suzhou, Shengyang, Beijing and
Philippines.
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Mr. WU had been an executive director of the Company for the
period from February 2006 to September 2011. He was responsible
to oversee the finance and operation of the Group’s hotel related
investment in Macau. Mr. Wu had been a director of an associated
company of the Group for the period from February 2006 to March
2008 acting as a hotel owner’s representative in Macau to whom the
hotel management reported on the hotel’s finance and operation.
Before Mr. Wu resigned from the Group, he was responsible for
Group’s property investment in Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. KWOK Tsz Kit, aged 49, became a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in December 2019 in operation of the Group’s newly
developed hospitality business. Mr. KWOK, founder of “HOMY”
budget hotel chain, is a pioneer in budget hotel segment of the
hospitality industry with comprehensive knowledge and market
sensitivity. He has been appointed by the HKSAR Home Affairs
Department to become a member of the Advisory Panel on Licensing
of Hotels and Guesthouses for 2020 to 2024 representing the hotels
and guesthouses industry. As a director of Hong Kong Association of
Hostels, Mr. KWOK committed to foster the long term development
of the guesthouse industry and often stands up to voice out to the
respective authorities expressing collective views on government
policies relevant to the industry as well as its practitioners.

Mr. KWOK oversees the Group’s hospitality business operation and
development.

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 55, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 30 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
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DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i) were required

NEAE GO (T &
M8y EAME
NGIQR:

Eﬂ\
X
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AR RBEBHERZMER
R PT)) (BIEIRBEE S RBEKRG 2
BRBXEEHREEARBER 2R KA

”{“ THHW{AITI/‘ ’JQ 5 N TUH"L

() RIBRE

to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong &) : S (i) 1R 5 &% Kk B & 15605535216 M 78

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352

TSR MATEe ek » (i) B MR Al
ﬁﬁ%@ZTT ZEFRIZEME RN T REERZFT - AR
(i) RRAZEEREFETBRABEARAIMEMS
IAEEAE (RFEHLRBAERAEXVE 2 E

of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock &) Z &% - BERBRHO RESTR 2 HEZL KA
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules  Z0F :

were as follows:

() Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i) REQXTRHPREERG zEDS

Company

Name of
company in Number of
which ordinary Ordinary
shares/securities shares/

Approximate
percentage
of total

Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
REDRES
EER BHE2Z FEgER HEEREZ
EEpE EmitE NCIECE EHHE BABS
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel Interest of controlled The Company 158,601,022 48.64%
SRR TE corporation (Note 1 and 2)
REthEEER ARA] 158,601,022 48.64%
(BfsE1 R2)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia Beneficial interests The Company 3,064,000 0.94%
LERBIR - EaniEn ARA] 3,064,000 0.94%
Interest of controlled The Company 158,601,022 48.64%
corporation (Note 1 and 2)
REthEEER ARA] 158,601,022 48.64%
(BFsE1 R2)
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania  Beneficial interests The Company 16,371,826 5.02%
KPR+ Emgn AN 16,371,826 5.02%
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Notes:
1. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited.
2. The issued share capital of ST (79) Investment Limited are both

wholly and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST
Investments”), the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
to one-third by each of Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as
co-administrators of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Mr. TSANG Chiu
Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of ST (79)
Investment Limited and ST Investments.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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1. L ERD BST (79) Investment Limited &
WA °

2. ST (79) Investment Limited 2 2 317 J& 4
FST Investments Holding Limited([ ST
Investments ) 2 E B A - HE BT
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(ii)

Name of Director/
Chief Executive
-4
TETHAEHSR

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
LRI+

Date of grant of
share options

RiLBEERY

14 September
2016

—E-RFNA
+HA

19 September
2017

—E—tFNHA
+18

3 October 2018
T /\F+A
SE

16 October 2019
—ZT-NF+A
+75H

Interests in the Share options of the Company

Exercisable period

T

14 September 2016 to
13 September 2026
T AENATHAE

—=

“EoRFAATZ=H

19 September 2017 to
18 September 2027
“E—t+EAATAEE

—ZZt+FNAT+NR

3 October 2018 to
2 October 2028
—E-N\F+H=HZE
—E-N\+HZH

16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
—Z-NF+RATREBEZE
—ZZAF+ATERR
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(i) RAEQXTEBREZ#ER
Approximate
Exercise Number percentage of
price per of options shareholding in
Share (HK$) outstanding the Company
BR HARITE AR DRAREZ
TRECEY) BREZE SR
0.732 3,096,000 0.95%
0.732 3,096,000 0.95%
0.698 3,096,000 0.95%
0.698 3,096,000 0.95%
0.395 3,096,000 0.95%
0.395 3,096,000 0.95%
0.25 3,260,000 1.00%
0.25 3,260,000 1.00%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2024, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the
Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.

I A

E’Lxm

3‘5'}"?”%%%17'?} NCIb &R )
' i

RZZTEZWMFE+-A=+—8  RBEZBHFK
B EBIZE336IKMRE 2 EEMREELM
BTANRIEEERFAEARREBITRALS%
SUEZFERTERRAB ZBAWNT ©
HWEBEZ DU EEBECEERFTETHRAE
TREZ AN o

Long position in shares R ZHFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Nature of interests shares held total shareholding
HEEREZ
®E/EB EmtE PR BRABEDHE
ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 158,601,022 48.64%
ST (79) Investment Limited (PffzE1) Entn 158,601,022 48.64%
ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 158,601,022 48.64%
corporation (Note 2)
ST Investments Holding Limited (Kf3E1) REHEE S 158,601,022 48.64%
GEH)
Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi Beneficial Interest 784,125 0.24%
(Note 3)
FRBERTRFBZRL (ME3) Bankn 784,125 0.24%
Interest of controlled 158,601,022 48.64%
corporation (Note 2)
REHEE S 158,601,022 48.64%

(f&E2)



Notes:

1. ST (79) Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by ST
Investments Holding Limited, the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to one-third by each of Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and
Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia.

2. These shares represent the number of shares beneficially owned by ST (79)
Investment Limited.

3. Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi are co-administrators of the estate
of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest of controlled
corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in co-administrators.

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and
Mr. Wu BinQuan. Three meetings were held during the current
financial year. Audit Committee had met with the management of the
Company and the auditors to have audit planning, review the interim
and final results, considered the significant accounting policies, and
discussed with the management matters relating to the Group’s
internal audit and internal control system. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2024, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rule”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that are
discussed later in this report.

The Board believes that good corporate governance culture is
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies. Corporate actions are carried out
by following the corporate value & spirit of “integrity, compliance and
care for stakeholders” in order to achieve continuous success and
sustainable growth.

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.
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The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.

As at 31 December 2024, the Board comprises seven Directors, three
of them are women, more than half of the Directors are non-executive
and independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and four of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui
Wing, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan. Each of Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors” of this annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors
that the Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate
for discharging their duties as Directors in the best interest of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. LAU Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the
Company.
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The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group, including the Board and senior management:

Board (as at the date of this report) E2e(NAFHREHE)

As at 31 December 2024: R_EB_MFE+_RA=+—
Senior management SHREEAB

Other employees HiEE
Overall workforce BB TE K

The women representations on the Board and the Group’s workforce
are 43% and 69% respectively. The Board considers the current
gender diversity of the Group is satisfactory.

AL (RE) FRAF - T PUFEFEHR

o 3 3

E=xelN_T—=FhLhARMEZFEZ Tt
BR(EFEZTIEBEK]) - ARFHER
REEEEEREZ LT RNER - BE
E=ZeNMEREREEURARS ZEE
b ARRBBREESERERERTH
HRHELRABZERBUIASARRFRE
FE - ARAKRZHEENBREREAN B
BETRNER - Fik  XEREEES -
R (BREME) - BEEARAE -

ARAERAEEERANOMERNZ T - T

XEVNAEEBTEBKOERLLE - BIEE
FehafEEA
Female Male
zH B
43% 57%
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(18) (12)
75% 25%
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The Board believes that independent views and input can enhance the
Board’s decision-making process and therefore make fair and proper
decisions and corporate actions.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board which, including but not
limited to, the composition of the Board and Board committees,
ensure the independence of all independent non-executive directors,
emphasis on independence in the decision making process,
compensation structure, availability of independent professional
advice and opinions. The Board will conduct a review annually
to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of the aforesaid
mechanisms.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.
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No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the attendance records
of individual Director at the Board meeting which is held at least four
times each year, meetings of three Board Committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

Board
EEg
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel LRREAE

(Chairman and the Chief Executive — (F/E#iTE#E#)

Officer) 4/4
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia =Ry 4/4
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KPEZ L 4/4
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTEE

Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit AFABEEE 4/4
Mr. LAU Pui Wing B E 4/4
Ms. HO Ting Mei fEiEz+ 4/4

Mr. WU BinQuan REEEE 4/4

HRESERAAEEEETFARARE @ &
WARERMEEBERE -

BE-Z-_NMF+_A=+—HLFE @&
%Ué%ﬁf#izd BOIMNANEZTES#
UEk=—AEFeZ8e(AIE%RZE8e  RA
ZEGhFMEZER)@ZNBFELENT

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HEERNEFBTNEERY
Audit Nomination = Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

ENZEE REZEE FHEES

0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 0/0 0/0
0/0 0/0 0/0
3/3 1/1 1/1
3/3 0/0 0/0
3/3 1/1 1/1
3/3 1/1 1/1
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During the year, the Company convened 1 general meeting on 3 June
2024 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. Details
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Chairman and SRR L4
the Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTEAEZ)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia BRI A+
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAAER+

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE

Mr. HUI Yan Kit AR A
Mr. LAU Pui Wing RHEe s A
Ms. HO Ting Mei s a2+
Mr. WU BinQuan S ERE

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

FER - ARFAR-ZZE-_MNESNA=BBH—
KEERD  QIARRIZBRBAFAE - &
EHEFBOT :

Annual General Meeting
held on 3 June 2024
R-ZB-NFARAZ=H

BT ZRREAFEAE

1/1
1/1
1/1

1/1
1/1
1/1
1/1
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BEZMBRET  ERESEETAERSD
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, according to the records
provided by the Directors, the individual training record of each
Director received for the year is summarized below:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel B EE
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia A 8 A =
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAAELZ T
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFABE
Mr. LAU Pui Wing BSH e S &
Ms. HO Ting Mei s a2+
Mr. WU BinQuan SR ESE

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will be
renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated by either
party giving not less than six months’ prior notice in writing to the
other. All Directors are subject to retirement from office by the rotation
at each annual general meeting as required by the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with
each of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst
other things, their term of offices for a period of two to three years
until terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting of the
Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) to the Board by
giving due consideration to the criteria, including but not limited to
Board diversity, qualifications, experience, independence, reputation
for integrity and potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board before making recommendation to the Board. The
Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate
in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the candidate(s) by
interviews, background checks etc.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September 2005
with written terms of reference which are available from the Company
Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee include making recommendations for all appointment,
re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to the Board. As at
31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee comprises three
members, all of whom are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. HO Ting Mei, Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. WU BinQuan. Ms.
HO Ting Mei is the chairman of the committee.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting, to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of
the Group steadily. The meeting also reviewed independence of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company, terms
of reference of Nomination Committee and its effectiveness, Board
Diversity Policy and consider the re-appointment of retiring directors
for election by shareholders at the forth coming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia and Ms. Ho Ting Mei will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit was
appointed as independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2004. He has been the independent non-executive Director of the
Company for over 20 years.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2024, the Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting
Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the Chairman of the
Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

& In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4, Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to
review policy and structure of the existing remuneration packages
of Directors and senior managements of the Company, and to
recommend the remuneration packages for Directors of the
Company. The recommended remuneration packages have been
approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of four members, namely,
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director) and Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller). The
Executive Committee shall normally meet on a monthly basis and in
any event no less than quarterly.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (i) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises four members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2024, the
members are Mr. LAU Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei and Mr. WU BinQuan all of whom are
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings, during which the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023, the interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2024 were reviewed and audit planning for year ended 31 December
2024. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board Practices”
of this report for the attendance record of individual Audit Committee
members. All these meetings were convened in accordance with the
Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024, whistleblowing policy and terms of reference of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 62.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (i) whistleblowing
policy and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The procedures
enable the Whistleblower to report the possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group directly addressed to relevant personnel.
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AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:
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The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
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The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2024 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 32 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2024.

There was no change in constitutional documents for the year end 31
December 2024.

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.

Overall, the Company considers the shareholders’ communication
policy of the Group to be effective and adequate. The Company
will continue to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy by shareholders’ feedback from
the above channel.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
]

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
R (B ER AR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited
BRI EERGTMEEHAARAR
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.8, 4(a) and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$87,100,000 as at 31 December 2024.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations of
the investment properties were determined using direct comparison
approach which require significant management judgement, including
selecting market comparable, identifying significant attributes and
making adjustments to the prices of the comparable for differences in
the attributes between the Group’s properties and the comparable.

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significant amount of investment properties to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and that significant
amount of management judgement and estimation being required in
determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

- evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodology used and the appropriateness of
selection of comparable, identification of key attributes and
making adjustments for the differences in the attributes based
on our knowledge of the property industry;

- engaging our internal expert to assist in our assessment; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets (included in property,
plant and equipment) and intangible assets

(Refer to notes 3.9, 4(b), 14(c) and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had right-of-use assets
(included in property, plant and equipment), other property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets with net carrying amounts
before current year’s impairment charge of HK$11,603,000,
HK$215,242,000 and HK$2,100,000 respectively, which are subject
to impairment assessment when impairment indicators are identified.
The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually. The management of
the Group assessed that impairment indication existed for the hair
styling segment and the hostels and guesthouse within the hospitality
services segment (collectively the “Subject CGUs”), and conducted
impairment assessment on those non-current assets of the Subject
CGUs with total carrying amount of HK$225,663,000. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal
(“FVLCOD”) and its value-in-use. The recoverable amounts of the
Subject CGUs were determined using value-in-use calculation or
FVLCOD as appropriate. Based on the management’s impairment
assessment, impairment loss of HK$848,000, HK$32,000 and
HK$498,000, totaling HK$1,378,000, was recognised during the
year for right-of-use assets, other property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets respectively.

The impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets (included in property, plant and equipment) and
intangible assets is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty.
The preparation of the value-in-use calculation requires significant
estimation and judgment by the management with respect to the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projection including future
revenue growth and gross profit margin, as well as the adoption
of discount rate. It also requires allocation of corporate assets and
allocation of corporate expenses that are necessary for generating
the cash inflows of a CGU. The determination of FVLCOD for certain
assets also requires considerable management judgement in applying
valuation techniques including selection of valuation methodology and
identifying and making adjustments to significant inputs. Accordingly,
we have identified it as a key audit matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets (included in property,
plant and equipment) and intangible assets (Continued)
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets (included in
property, plant and equipment) and intangible assets included:

- Obtaining an understanding on management’s processes and
controls in respect of the impairment assessment process;

= Checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculation;

= Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions of the
cash flow projection of the Subject CGUs including revenue
growth, gross profit margin and discount rate based on our
knowledge of the business and having regard to the market
and economy conditions;

— Assessing reasonableness of allocating corporate assets and
corporate expenses to the Subject CGUSs;

- Assessing whether the key assumptions have been determined
and applied on a consistent basis across the Group;

- Comparing current year’s actual results with the figures
included in the prior year’s cash flow projection to assess
reliability of management’s forecast;

- Considering appropriateness of valuation methodology
adopted and adjustments made to the significant inputs in

estimating the FVLCOD of relevant assets;

- Checking on a sample basis the accuracy and relevance of the
input data used by the management to supporting evidence;

- Performing sensitivity analysis; and

— Assessing the disclosure made over the impairment
assessment.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ming Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P05682

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR A AT I A iR

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

2024 2023
—EMF —E_=fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M= BETT BEETFIT
Revenue g 5 48,042 53,037
Cost of revenue W 28 AR AR (32,978) (31,326)
Gross profit EX 15,064 21,711
Other income HaUA B 1,078 4,491
Fair value loss on financial assets WA EFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss PR EEZ AT EER 20 (2,087) (11,560)
Fair value loss on investment properties 18 &% > AT EEE 15 (5,000) (4,700)
Administrative expenses TEAX (28,545) (29,849)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BB E 2 BERE 16 (498) =
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BEMKREZ
equipment BB 14(c) (32) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE CRERBE 14(c) (848) (1,508)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYE 7 EE 15(f) (4,140) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHBARZEE 33(b) = (900)
Share of loss of associate oG =R F)E1E (2) -
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (7,382) (10,814)
Loss before income tax MrPTIS TR AT E 18 8 (32,392) (33,129)
Income tax credit FiiSfiige 9 546 4,229
Loss for the year EEEEFR (31,846) (28,900)
Other comprehensive income Hia2EBA
Item that will not be reclassified HESTEEF7EZE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmZ2EE
Changes in fair value of equity BATERAEMEE
instruments at fair value through WAZBRATEZ
other comprehensive income N EEE 446
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEBA
the year 446
Total comprehensive income for REEZHEWALTE
the year (31,821) (28,454)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -« %5 & 2 M Ut A # &

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

2024
—E-mE
Notes HK$’000
=2 BT T
Loss for the year attributable to: UTREEERFERSE :
Owners of the Company KRBHEEA (31,086)
Non-controlling interests JEFRRR (760)
(31,846)
Total comprehensive income for UTREREEAERE
the year attributable to: ZHEBABE :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZEDN (31,061)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (760)
(31,821)
HK cents
A
Loss per share BREE 10
- Basic — &R (9.53)
~ Diluted —#E (9.53)

2023
—Eo=4
HK$’000
BT T

(28,736)
(164)

(28,900)

(28,290)
(164)

(28,454)

HK cents
B



AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A e B AR UL R

as at 31 December 2024 « R—F_F+—H=+—H

Notes
B aE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRS 14
Investment properties "EYE 15
Intangible assets mEEE 16
Interests in associate i /N o -y 17
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERTAEM

other comprehensive income EHEBACHBEE 18
Loan receivables FEWE K 21
Deferred tax assets FETRIEEE 29
Current assets REEE
Inventories 58 19
Financial assets at fair value BATEETABRZZ

through profit or loss MEEE 20
Loan receivables and other receivables,  JEURE X « HhEILBR

deposits and prepayments e MIEN oA 21
Amount due from non-controlling interest & U 3E4% AR #E 25 2k 1B 22
Amount due from associate JE Wi B 2 X B RRIAR 22
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHERR 23
Current liabilities =R
Trade payables BRI 24
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T AR SR R FE T 5RIR 25
Amounts due to shareholders FEH AR R SR8 26
Contract liabilities aHatE 27
Lease liabilities HEBRE 35(a)
Bank borrowings (secured) RITIEE(HEM) 28
Net current liabilities REBAEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAE

2024 2023
—E-ME —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEETIT
225,965 227,209
87,100 114,300
1,602 2,100
807

722

315,685 345,138
71 83
51,098

9,728

10

11,690

72,609

76 80

8,085 6,184
15,378 15,378
116 124
8,506 9,571
113,942 122,114
146,103 153,451

(81,957) (80,842)
233,728 264,296
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION © 4 & B4 %5 ik I 2%

as at 31 December 2024 » R—F_[iF+—H=+—H

2024
—EMmF
Notes HK$°000
=3 BET T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 35(a) 4,008
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(HER) 28 6,827
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIA B & 29 2,240
13,075
Net assets BEFE 220,653
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 30 65,215
Reserves HiE 34 156,082
Equity attributable to the owners of KRB AELER
the Company 221,297
Non-controlling interests FEfE RS (644)
Total equity A 220,653

On behalf of the directors

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
BRR
Director

EF

RERE=

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania

REAE
Director

EF

2023
—E_=F
HK$'000
BEETIT

1,796
7,289
2,737

11,822

252,474

65,215
187,143

252,358
116

252,474
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KAREARRRR

Financial
assets
atfair value
through other
comprehensive Share
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation income option  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
ROYE
AR
2EAZ
B R EXGR EGfE  WREERE  BRERE 2t ait FEREE it
Note 34(a) Note 34(0)) (Note 34(c)) (Note 34()
(Mitog) (et (i) (ssqg)
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$1000. HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
EETTL T BT BT AT ey EBTT EETT s ey

At1 January 2023 R-%-zE-B-A 65,215 168,227 146,189 846 (1,398 3,110 (91,541) 200,648 20 280,928
Loss for the year KERER = - - - - - 28,73) (28,7%) (164 (28.900)
Other comprehensive income EGETTON

- Changes i fair value of equiy nstruments  ~RATEAEH2E
at fairvaue through other comprehensie A ZRATEY
income ATEES = - - - 4 - - i - 46

Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ AEE2EWALE - - - - 46 - (28736) (28,290) (164 (28,454)

Transfer of financial assets a fairvalue through HEZATEF AL {2E
other comprehensive ncome reseneupon A2 RAT Bk
the disposal of equity instuments at fairvelue ~ RAFEEFAEH2E

through other comprehensive income WAERERRE
- - - - i - (722) - = -
At1 January 2024 R-E-mE-F-A 65,215 158,227 146,189 (120,999) 252,358 252,474
Loss for the year KEEER (31,086) (31,086) (31,846)
Other comprehensive income EGETTON
- Changes i fair value of equity instruments  ~RATEAEH2E
at fair vaug through other comprehensie A ZRATEZ
income ATERY
Total comprehensive ncome forthe year ~ AEER TN LS (31,086) (31,061) (31,821)

Transfer of fnancial assets at far value through i ERAT &3 ARMAE
other comprehensive ncome reseneupon A2 RAT Bk
the disposal of equity nstuments at fairvalie ~ EATEH AR AT
{hrough other comprehensive income WAZBHEERR (197)

At 31 December 2024 RZB-METZA=+-A 65,215 168,221 146,189 846 3110 (152,262) 21,207 (644) 20653

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period ~ * RREHR  WERRRZ QERIBERSUBR
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. RERAZ [FEE] -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « # % —ZE =14+ —H=1+—HI FF

2024

—EMF

Notes HK$’000
=2 BET T

Cash flows from operating activities

LLoss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value loss on investment properties

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Loss on disposal of investment properties
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment loss on property, plant and

equipment

Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Share of loss of associate

REXBELCHERE

BRATS AT E 1R

LA T SIRELAE
WME - BERRETE

EREEERE
BREME 2 A VEER

BRAFEFABRZTE

BEZNFEEE
RITHEWA

KB LEMEREZBRSWBA

BB A
HEME - BE R
&2 Wt
HEREYMRZER

HE—FBARZER
WME - BEREREZRE

B8
BIVEE < RERBIE
5 A E R EEE

DIEE S R RIER

(32,392)

14 1,137
14 12,871
15 5,000

2,087
(127)
(2,689)
7,382

(320)

4,140

33(b) =
32

14(c)

Operating (loss)/profit before working

capital changes
Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in loan receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables,
other payables and accruals

(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities

R EEESEBA
(R, a
FERD
BEAVEFARSZ
MBEERD,(3E0)
& E TR D
BB « RE K
RN FRIER A, (4500)
BERMIRK - AR
AR K FEET BIR
g Omd)
AHaECRD), 1

(1,531)
12

6,011
203

593

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

EERBKE,(FTFE)

HFE

2023
—Eo=4
HK$’000
BT T

(33,129)

1,268
10,806
4,700

11,560
(2,512)

(3,166)
10,814

2,749

67

(8,718)

(2,129)

(1,861)
54

(4,838)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS *% S H & i & &

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

2024 2023
—E-INE —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T ST T
Cash flows from investing activities BREXBELZREFE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - M= LxE (1,991)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE  BEREZEZ
plant and equipment Fr1S 5308 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEFIERIA
properties -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBARZ
Frissk1E 33(b) 8,300
Proceeds from disposal of listed share HERATFEFAEMZE
measured at FVOCI WA Z ETRRG FTiS50E 4,646
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B IRRITIFFOR 86,248
Advances to associate Bl ESNCIE =
Bank interest received BUERTTFIE 2,912
Dividend received from listed investments BB FHiRE 2 KA 3,166
Net cash generated from investing activities # & 2 75 Fr 532 £ F 58 103,281
Cash flows from financing activities FIEXKELEZHRERE
Increase in amounts due to shareholders &/~ I 583X IE & h1l - 378
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 36 (8,634) (79,488)
Repayment of principle portion of EEHEaBELAEH D
the lease liabilities 36 (12,433) (11,917)
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBRENFE 36 (501) (918)
Loan interest paid BRERAE 36 (6,881) (9,896)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBTFEH 2 FEE (28,449) (101,841)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand HERELEEY
cash equivalents 2, (R ) R (3,398)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZHRER
at1 January ﬁﬁ%{g% 15,088
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—-RH2Z
31 December Tﬁ.ﬁ:&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% 11 ,690
Analysis of the balances of cashand RE&EREESZEEBYZ
cash equivalents HERDT
Cash and bank balances as stated in RERE MR RTIEZ
consolidated statement of financial e RIRTTREER
position 11,690
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A5 A BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #%= —F —pyE+—F=—+—HIFFZF

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is at Unit 903, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151

Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 33(a). The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as

the “Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$'000”) except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to
171 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 were approved and authorised for issue by the

directors on 28 March 2025.
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TREREAMKY A—HERRS
RAGE EROREEBRERFHE
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2 7 9% = R L 7 Clarendon House,
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FELITE1515 E AR DIEI0SE -

ARREEREREERER  H
MEBARZ EEXBFBHNME
33(a) ° AR F R EK B R RN T XA
e AKE] -

REMBRRIAARBZNEEEE
(BB 25 - BRAZEFEHAI - A
EREHNBEAAEZRELOT (B
BTl e

HNEREITIHAZGEAUBRERTY
BEEEetMag([F8esa
g EBZEEVBREEN(EE
MIERE R ) (L AEBREERESE
B 3REER] - RS ER([ BB
SEER D ERE)RE - KEPBR
EINBIEEB D AHEN R T 5
ETRAIZEAEERT

BHE_Z-_WFE+_A=+—H8ItF
EZEeaUBRERTIN_E_AF=
AZ+ N \EBARESHEREETE -



AL E S (FE) FRAR -

R PR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © %% & Bt %5 # 3 Bt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « %= —ZF —piF+{—H=+—HI FZ

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2024

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following amendments to standards
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2024:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
HK Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

- Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The adoption of the above amendments to HKFRSs
that are effective for the current accounting period did
not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

il REAEw] A 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © %5 & W % # 3 Bt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR 2. RABE] BB R A T BB
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs i i RN ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) New or amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
The following new or amendments to HKFRSs,
potentially relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Company:

Amendments to HKAS 21
and HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

HKFRS 18

Amendments to
HK Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Lack of Exchangeability'

Amendment to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Contracts Referencing Nature-
Dependent Electricity?

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume 112

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

(b)

B M ERE AT HAE
157] & 78 Rt #3522 A

VAR B 78 B 55 i & 22 R B9 3R]
SEERT AR EARKE RS
RAEM HEBEMEREN -
BRERRERFRMN -

BRGENZAER  RTARAE
BRMBREENE R
B
BEMBREENENR SRTANERHEN
ERUBREENRTE B
ZE7]
BEMHREENZORR JRKREREINA
ERMBREENETR W

LB

ERUBREENeY  DEVRREEUEH

A2 B REZERNE-F
1152

BEMHREENF0F MREROZIIRRE

BEREESR LT DARESSRUBER
LEF-ERAER
SEEXRERZ
EHER BE

BEMHREENF 08 REERABEDAL
LEEEERNESE AELRLANEAE
paH hEREE

1 RZE_RAF—A—BXER
1R ) F S AR A

2 RZFEZR"F-—A—HBXER
16 89 5 B A 3

3 RZTZ+tF—A—B%#ERA
YRR BRI A B
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

ADOPTION OF NEW OR 2. PRRBET SR AERT A  BBS
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs e HE R (48)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New or amendments to HKFRSs that (b) CEMEREMVFITRE
have been issued but are not yet effective BT EBMIEHREER (EF)
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the relevant EEEHMAEMRBAMEIER
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s REAEERAMEREREH
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the “EEPENOETBRERFP R
effective date of the pronouncement. The above new W BRBEBVEBRESEISHES
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but Hh - FER BB B ERKRE
not yet effective are not expected to have a material AT R R AE T B S B S R
impact on the Group’s results and financial position LSHERE  KREEMNESE LY
upon application except for HKFRS 18. BRATRH T X ERTE -
HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial BB SRS R E 1857 Y
Statements, introducing new requirements that will help REBSAEREE [ EH
to achieve comparability of the financial performance of AWEZ ]| SIAFBEE A
similar entities and provide more relevant information BRERAUETEMHERAD
and transparency to users. Even though HKFRS 18 will At WAEARPIREE %48
not impact the recognition or measurement of items in BEBELERE BEDAY
the financial statements, its impacts on presentation BERE R FE 185 I T &8
and disclosures are expected to be pervasive, in BHRBENERIGTE 8
particular those related to the statement of financial BRI REERFE18RE B
performance and providing management-defined BHREMEF ARSI AEKRE
performance measures within the financial statements. B BERBHEERFP27 68
Management is currently assessing the detailed BRINEE  HEZEAEER
implications of applying the new standard on the R BHRRP 25 MIFEET B
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Based on FEMNAH - EREBRTIER
preliminary assessment, the line items presented in the L ERFER Y AEFES
primary financial statements might change as a result IS mERMNFHAZE - BRIEWV
of the application of the concept of “useful structured FHE TEMBEEREEREING
summary” and the enhanced principles on aggregation HEAceEER [ ABRERB
and disaggregation. The Group does not expect tREIBSEEBEHAD
there to be a significant change in the information o b BB EIREE o A
that is currently disclosed in the notes because the EEEHBAEM TP IRED
requirement to disclose material information remains ERETrelRERNEE 7
unchanged; however, the way in which the information AR BEERERNEEERS
is grouped might change as a result of the aggregation/ T8 Rm o BEBEAR
disaggregation principles. Moreover, there will be sfeRHAH HDERINmEA
significant new disclosures required for management- 28 ot BEERERRE
defined performance measures. HKFRS 18 is effective AEMBEIGFEELERTTH
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January = BEAMEHREEDNE 185
2027. Retrospective application is required and so the RZEZt+F—H—Bxk2i’
comparative information for the financial year ending 31 FEMFEBEAER - ARNE
December 2026 will be restated in the accordance with ZRPER WBERESRS
HKFRS 18. MR EERFI8HREIEE

—E-RFTZA=+—H1L
PR FENLERER -
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$31,846,000.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$81,957,000. Out of which there were shareholders
loan of HK$15,378,000 without fixed term of repayment
(Note 26), while the Group maintained the cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$12,410,000.

3.

A5 6 B R B AR

B K e G BUR
REZECARBREGFEA S
AEHBEBRANT - BBEHAE
o ZERECRAESNEEEH
A o

31 mMREERFECERR

BREMERETEBIAN
REFEIIRIN ZEHRATT
BERTIBRIBELRAEREL
BRAEEERN TXEFERR
ZEAL o

HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—
HIEFE  XEBBBENA
75 131,846,000 T c M - T
—WHE+ZA=+—8 K&
ErnaERBRERBEELNS
¥ 81,957,000 7T ° H & B %
15,378,000 70 2 ¥ R E 70 &
BT BRI (FYsE26) » A
FEMNRS RIBTAEBERR
#4975 %12,410,0007T °
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (Continued)

When assessing the appropriateness of the use of the
going concern basis for the purpose of the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements, the directors
have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period
of 12 months from the end of the reporting period
(“Cash Flow Forecast”). In preparing the Cash Flow
Forecast, the directors have given careful consideration
of the future liquidity and performance of the Group
and available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient resources to continue
as a going concern. The following plans and actions
for mitigating the liquidity pressure and improving the
financial position of the Group have been considered in
the Cash Flow Forecast:

(i) The Group has obtained undertaking from a
shareholder not to demand repayment of the
loan granted by it to the Group amounting to
HK$15 million as at 31 December 2024 until
such time when repayment to the shareholder
will not affect the Group’s ability to repay other
creditors in the normal course of business and
that the shareholder would render adequate
financial support to the Group to enable it to
continue as a going concern.

(if) In November 2024, the Group renewed
banking facilities of a bank with total facilities
of HK$217.5million. Such facilities would be
available for use during the forecast period.

In the opinion of the directors, taking into account the
above plans and actions, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the directors consider that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets, and liabilities of the subsidiary.

The results of subsidiaries disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.5

Revenue and other income recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sales of goods or the provision of
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining
whether the Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it
considers whether it obtains control of the products or
services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use
of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
from the products or services.

Revenue is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
goods or service of the Group may be transferred over
time or at a point in time.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.5

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control of the hair styling services and hospitality
services is transferred over time when the Group’s
performance provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the customer. If
control of the services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the product sales under hair
styling services from the Group.

Further details of the Group’s recognition policies for
revenue and other income are as follows:

(a) Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
and hospitality services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered and transferred
over time. There is only one performance
obligation for each contract with customer. In
general, there is no credit term offered to the
customers which is consistent with market
practice.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
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(Continued)

(o) Rental income under operating lease b) KEHEELHBENH
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() Revenue from product sales under hair styling () MEFPESERERHE
services is recognised when the customers LEFMEECEER
take possession of the products and title has ERRRERENE
been passed. There is only one performance MU AERER - FHH
obligation for each contract with customer and EFPAIUMERNERT
no credit term offered to the customers which is EF—HEBEXNE® B
consistent with the market practice. IS A EIRR - pbEA T

HEH— -

(d)  Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the (d) FEWATDZREKREE
principal outstanding at the applicable interest 7R 58 DA i) 85 A A (BD
rate on (i) the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying EHELEREERE
amount less loss allowance for credit-impaired M BEERIBRE)

financial assets; or (ii) the gross carrying amount
for non-credit-impaired financial assets. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the
gross carrying amount of the financial assets.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.5

3.6

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, other than those directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each of the reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Over the shorter of remaining
lease term or estimated
useful life

Over the shorter of remaining
lease term or estimated

Right-of-use for other
properties leased

useful life

Leasehold 10 - 337,%
improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 20 - 33'/,%

office equipment

Leased assets and assets held under finance leases are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.9).

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of the reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

3. EREFIEUL(E)

3.7

3.8

I - WERRE(E)

i & E R E{E SR E A5 AT
Bl & %8 - A% & E A MO =
HAlf e (RHES.9) o

ALEME  BEKREEE
EEZRERBEMSREF
HEHFEMECESE  RAEE
RERDZAER -

REEHREEMBZARKHE
M BrAgERAAREAZE
EZKARAEER - ZE&
EZHBRRATAINABEZ
FREER RER BB EE
) o PR R A (0 4
ERREER)NELEMBRME
At ARz

REWE
REMEZRTRIOEZHE
RERNREXSMEREMET
B2WE  BAFRBN—KRE
BEREHRHE AREESRMH
EE MR BITHAEM
RBZME -

RN T ERE - REMREK
A(BREEMEREGRA)
AR R HERR  REY
ERAVFERY - A FESRE
REMFUERME T EAR
CERRZINEEXMAEME
E o MMmEPRER ZREE
RN E AR ZIRITHR -

83



84

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, interests in subsidiaries and
associate are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

3.10 Leases

(a)

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (i)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of 12
months or less. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liability. The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
properties to a number of tenants. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES oF
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments

oK A R (f80)

3.11 €@MIA

(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue.

(a)

MBEE

BB EE(LEENRE
BB B 5 IR AR SR BR
SN B IRIR D TE I I
BRBETRENEER
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BRAFEFABSNE
B) -

Debt instruments BT A

There are two measurement categories into AEEBEGEKEITE D
which the Group classifies its debt instruments: HRMERT 2R
Amortised cost BESHR S

Assets that are held for collection of contractual BEWBREHNRERE
cash flows where those cash flows represent 2 BE RS E KA
solely payments of principal and interest are B MZERLTREE
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets Bz ARAE &F

at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at
FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period: and
(ii) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

For debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as
financial liabilities at amortised cost, which
including trade payables and other payables,
amounts due to shareholders and bank
borrowings. The Group’s financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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3.12 FiSRieastEE

3.12 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits. Except for temporary
differences arising on (i) initial recognition of assets
and liabilities that are not part of business combination
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; (ii) investments in subsidiaries
and associate where the Group is able to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences; and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES o)
(CONTINUED)

3.12 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

BOR & FHEUR (48)

3.12 FEBzastEE(H)

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average rates that are expected
to apply to the taxable profit or tax loss of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse. The determination of the average tax rates
requires an estimation of (i) when the existing temporary
differences will reverse and (i) the amount of taxable
income in those years. The estimate of future taxable
income includes (i) income or loss excluding reversals
of temporary differences; and (ii) reversals of existing
temporary differences.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in

equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.

e

LEJ\I|HIJ:F),Z Ll

3.12

3.13

S 5 R B R

HF

8B zestRE (&)
BEEBRAEENREER SR
SHEM YR THAERR
%) & R 150 )it A1) By LA Wi [B] 2 BB 3K
R IHE EMER o

ERERIAEEX A BN AR
HATHEEFIAE B R E E
EHNBRABE UERNZF
EERBREERBEIBARRA
— WGBSR A
AEERNVFBEEEGERE
IR A E M A ER T -

FIEHIINEBRETHER  EF
B P15 70 S 00 EL fth 22 T Ui o B
RHIEBE BB - MELIS
AT BEBESREMEE
W tER - AR RIAERE
ENEaEANEEARR - B
MIATNEZ R E R R o

RERREEEY
RehReFEMRETHER
T FRB|THERERIAR
ARFERKCABERS A
BEEZHRRSE ZR2IHE
REZBEAIATZEHRE RS
HRE -



AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
3.14 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

3.15

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.  EREFBUR ()
(CONTINUED)

3.15 Share-based employee compensation

3.15 LRGN zEESMHE

(Continued)

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each of
the reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.16

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at
the end of each of the reporting period and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financing plan assessed as detailed in note 3.1. However,
because not all future events or conditions can be predicted,
this assumption is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

(a)

Estimated fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment
properties were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professional valuers using direct
comparison approach. In arriving at the valuation, the
valuers have selected suitable market comparable,
identified significant attributes for each of the property
types and applied their knowledge and experience in
determining the necessary adjustments to the prices
of the comparable for differences in the attributes
between the Group’s properties and the comparable.
The valuation are subject to significant estimation and
judgment by the valuers and the management which
might materially differ from the actual results.

More detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties are set out in
note 15.

T RERR ZERRR
TXAAEEEBRREFEEHART
EYBREHEHHEERBBECRE
BFHERHARZEARR

(a)

REWMERZEFTAFE
HIKM 16 E - A E
ZEREMERBERREBEL
EXMGEMERERLEAE
TEMR - HEEHHER @ (E
B EREBEAENTIS A LERY
X HINBBEMENEZE
M WEREMERERIA
SEMEREALEBRYEZHEDH
BHEERETE A LBRYEER
MUBREE - HEABGERR
KEEEF L E XM RH
B ATRERERERAEAE
o

FRREMERATEAEZE
ZHMENIINHIFE15 -
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) Lt TP REREZEZEERFR(E)
(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, (b) Y% BERRE FHE

right-of-use (included in property, plant and
equipment) and intangible assets

Management assessed that as at 31 December 2024,
there were indications of impairment in respect of the
Group’s right-of-use assets (included in property, plant
and equipment), other property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets. Accordingly, management
performed impairment testing for these assets by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts following the accounting policy for impairment
of non-financial assets (note 3.9).

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset
belongs when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually. The management
of the Group assessed that impairment indication
existed for the hair styling segment and the hostels
and guesthouse within the hospitality services segment
(collectively, the “Subject CGUs”), and conducted
impairment assessment on those non-current assets
of the Subject CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined using value-in-use calculations
and fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) for
certain assets. Based on the results of the impairment,
impairment loss of HK$848,000, HK$32,000 and
HK$498,000, totaling HK$1,378,000, was recognised
during the year for right-of-use assets, other property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets respectively.

(BEYE BERZER
BREEERE
EEEBFME RS _MF
+—A=+—H BEEWE .
WEREE - FHE(BED
¥ BELKRE)NEFLEER
ERETR - Wit BREH
FHEEEETREANR %
RIZBIEESREEREBECLEE
BREHEEmAERATKE S8
LT (FTEES.9)

fis A B B (A 7T AT e B & 58
AEERGEFEEMBRSE
HEBMA([REEESM]) M
KWECHE - AEEEEETG
SRIRETEB D B RAFRS
EBOHANRNIRE REE(H
WIERBESELEENM])TFHE
BEDR  WHIFBRESES
BAUMIERBEEEITHET
o BEELABMHITREE
HARATABENEFER
ATEEMRATENRESK
ATAFEMBREEKER])
BT - REBERELER  FHE
BE - EMWE  BELRE
MEREERFTARND BIERM
1B |5 18 848,000 % T * 32,000
7 JT & 498,000 T - A #H
1,378,000/ 7T °
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use (included in property, plant and
equipment) and intangible assets (Continued)
The cash flow projection adopted under the value-
in-use calculations incorporates a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events
and therefore, are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making
these key estimates and judgments, the management
has taken into consideration assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existed at the end
of the reporting period. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group. The value-in-use calculations
also require the management to exercise judgement to
determine an appropriate discount rate for the cash flow
projection. Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgement would affect
the estimation of recoverable amount and may result
in adjustment to their carrying amounts. For the
determination of FVLCOD for certain assets based on
direct comparison approach, the outcome is affected by
availability and quality of comparable data and degree
of subjectivity in making adjustments to the prices of
the comparable for differences in the attributes between
the Group’s assets and the comparable, as well as the
estimation of the cost of disposing the assets.

Details about the impairment assessment are set out in
note 14(c).

HE T FE+=-F=+—HIFEZE

E T RERR 2 EERF(E)

(b)

M BERRE  EHAE
(BEWE  BERRKRE)R
BREEREE)
RWEREEFERENRS
MEFRRABEZEBEBAKE
R EZR G RER  BREX
THEE MR - WA LR EFR
BREBEADH - RIEHLE
TEEFAREE  BEER
EZRINTZENBEMRETHR
BT IEIRR M RER b FfhE
EHEEREMSEBERARE
PRI ERR ZETLER -
EREEFETRTEEETE
HENBEREREBANSG
BREIR K - BRAEE KA E R
EHRGHEZARED KT E
A E e Ea AR - WA REE
BEKEERMAR - SLRIE
BERLBEEEETEENR
FEMNREERAME @ &
XAUBLBRBENRERE
EURAASEEERT AL
REELRBUZEMEAE
HBREEERIFLHENTIE
RBEMTYE UREEEED
RAMESE o

BERBENEEFIERHRM T
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S. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. g M HAm YA
Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities, AEBTLEEBKNFRNER Z WL
is recognised during the year as follows: B
2024 2023
—E_F B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Revenue from contracts with BEFEHWE
customers
Timing of revenue recognition W as R B
- Over time — BEAF
Hair styling services SRR RS 15,277
Hospitality services IRIE R R IR S 31,393
Timing of revenue recognition W 2> B AR B
- At a point in time - RE—IE
Product sales under hair styling services SEIREHREIE N2 EMISE 555
Revenue from other sources REHMRFz W
Rental income M A 2,796
Interest income from money lending EEF B RA 81
Securities investments BHIEE 2,985
53,037
Other income Hl A
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 2,512
Dividend income from listed investments REZAFEFTAEMEE
classified as financial assets at FVOCI WA B EEER
EHREZREBA 259
Exchange gain R 992
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE HEK
equipment B =Pl e =
Sundry income FMIEWA 728

4,491




AL (RE) FRAF - T PUFEFEHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following six operating segments:

Hair styling

Money lending

Property investments

Securities investments

Hospitality services

Property project
management

Provision of hair styling services
and related product sales in
Hong Kong

Provision of commercial and
personal loans in Hong Kong

Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income and for potential capital
appreciation in both Macau and
Hong Kong

Investing in listed equity securities
and equity-linked investments in
Hong Kong and United States

Provision of hospitality services in
Hong Kong

Provision of property related
project management service

HE_T_E+—F=+—HIFE

REEHZ2RTAEERTEZTAMH
BEFERENEBERBAKRI D 2 EIR
DEARBFZEFB D RR AT
BER  AEEEREMNELE DAL
WEDEBEN - AFE2RTATES
(EBL2ERERE) FKBAKE DTS
REASEIZEMRRBREE -
REBMBR D BATNEZREDE -

BN - EESREENEHLR
ARER e

e — EEBRUEER
BAEHR

WERE - REUNBRFREEZ

BEREENELER
BEUARBEES
51

BERE - RABBREELABRA

B5RREH G

BRERFSS — ERBRMRKER

AR 7% TR AR
WEEE - REMFEBER
BER BERE
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

7 BP Uk

—E-mE
HK$’000
BT

Hair styling SERRET 12,864
Money lending BE

Property investments YR E 3,174
Securities investments BHRE 2,678
Hospitality services iR IE R R AR 29,246

Property project management %) %38 B & 12

Unallocated income KoOBUWA

Exchange (loss)/gain, net PE N (B518), /W 5

Corporate staff costs ARBIRA

Other corporate and HEHRARRADERX
unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax M ETiS TR Es 18

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers.

Segment results represent the profit/loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of central administrative costs.
Segment results excluded certain bank interest income,
dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI and net
exchange loss/gain which arise from assets that are managed
on a group basis. Segment results also excluded corporate
staff costs and other corporate and unallocated expenses.
This is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

BT T

o E R ()

DEb S R A
NEBIRA 2R/ HIE D 2 Wk K %
B2 ¢

Segment results
DEBEE
2023 2024 2023
- Bk T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T LR

HK$’000

15,832 12 (1,275)

81 (4) 1
2,796 (14,779) (10,539
2,935 591 (8,625)

31,393 (3,276) 3,540

= (8) 8

53,037 (17,464) (16,890)

780 3,256
k) 992
(6,440) (6,549)

(9,255) (13,938)

(32,392)

LB 2R WBERBINEEL Z
Yas o

IMEBEESOBEEZEN B
B WEEARPRITBRA - 28 %
BMTERREAEEEREZEEES
ZETRITMEBWA - BRFERA
Hi 2 ERANPEEE BB BA
RIE S B8, W FRE o DR EETT
TREARBIRAREMRFIA R
ADEAX - WWHIRARITEFTERZ
7% BEDRERNARE D BER
iH o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

o1 #8 Bk ()
SHEAERAME

2024
—EMmF
HK$’000
BT T

3,132
2,144
93,898
44,153
225,924
65

Segment assets PEEE

Hair styling EAVEET

Money lending BE

Property investments MERE

Securities investments BHEE

Hospitality services IRIE R R FE RS

Property project management YIEBHER

Total segment assets DEEERE

Deferred tax assets REFIREE

Financial assets at FVOCI BAFERAEMZE
WA Z BT EE

Short-term bank deposits RHIRTTIER

Other corporate and unallocated assets

HtbRBIRARDEEE

369,316
771
3

3,000
6,741

Consolidated total assets

BHEERRE

379,831

Segment liabilities PEHEE

Hair styling il

Money lending BE

Property investments MERE
Hospitality services BRJE R SR AF AR TS
Property project management MEIEEER
Total segment liabilities SEaBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIESRE
Bank borrowings (secured) IRITIEE (HEF)

Other corporate and unallocated liabilities

HibRAIRARDEEE

52,156

2,240
86,001
18,781

Consolidated total liabilities

BHtBERR

159,178

S 5 i R B AR

2023
—_F_=

HK$’000
BETIT

4,895
2,255
119,555
52,233
226,861
18

405,817
722
807

4,000
6,401

417,747

5,863

17
14,104
37,517

57,506
2,737

87,895
17,135

165,273
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

= all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than financial assets at FVOCI and short-term bank
deposits which are managed on group basis and other
corporate and unallocated assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings
which are managed on group basis, and other
corporate and unallocated liabilities.

0.

Gy HRE R (48)
SEEE RS EH)
MERSBRBARSES D HHER
e -

- FREEOSEEFNZHRDE
(BAFESAEBEZEEAZ
MBEE RESELEEREZ
HEHRITERAREM R TR
AOBEERIN) &

- MHBEREBHIEEFE2®R A
(EEHRBABERILRESELEE
BZETRITEEREM AT
RARDERABERIN)

\:

Other segment information Hth &R
Fair value loss on Loss on disposal of Share of
Interest income investment properties Finance costs a subsidiary (note 33(h)) Depreciation loss of associate
RENEL HE-BREATLZ

HSHA AVERE HERA JER(KE0) il | AEBELTER
2024 2028 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2028 2024 2028
CECNE el CE-ME et SN St E-ME el S-ME bl 5o ke
HK$'000 WRGTEXOM HKS'000 WGISOM HK$'000 BGIEXUM HKS'000 WRGISXNUM HKS'000 EGICHNON HKS'000 [GIEHNL]
Crawdll EETT WV EETT WV AETr WLVl AETr WLVl EETT EEREVE AT
Hair styling SRIGH 9 - - 259 - 1,574 2,55 -
Money Lending g 1 - - - - - - -
Property investments NERE Kl (5,000) IEUNON] 44 900) 167 164 -
Hospitality services T R R 5 - = 2281 = 8846 =
18 (5,000) IR0 2,981 (%00) 11,565 -
Unallocated AR 2494 - 7833 = 509 =
Total &t 2512 (5,000) I.CRL0)] 10,814 (%00) 12,074 -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zrab&k} (4
Other segment information (Continued) Eﬂﬂﬁ}{ﬂ&ﬁﬂ(ﬁg)

Additions to specified
Interests in associate non-current assets
REE AR 2R EEERBEEZRNE
2024 2023 2024 2023
e SebiEN —F —t SeiE — T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Autr WL ETE e

Hair styling SRRET

Money lending BE

Property investments MEKRE

Hospitality services BRIE R AR

Unallocated RAER

Total et
During the year ended 31 December 2024, impairment losses HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HIF
of HK$1,378,000 (2023: HK$1,508,000) in aggregate was B ERYE  BEERE AR
recognised for the property, plant and equipment, right- BENLBEEERBEEIEBAE
of-use assets and intangible assets, of which nil (2023: BE1 378000 ( —E - =F : B
HK$1,339,000), HK$1,378,000 (2023: nil) and nil (2023: 1,508,0007T) * B RER R HED -
HK$169,000) were attributable to the segment of hair styling, ﬁﬁ)ﬁ&?j{ﬁﬁ&%“*ﬁ&u SN ER
segment of hospitality services, and segments of securities BEEENPLALRNAZT(ZZE_=F : &
and property project management respectively (note 14(c)). #51,339,0007T ) + A% 1,378,000 (=

FoF R)RT(ZF=F AR
169,0007T) (Fff3E14(c)) °

109



110

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. &b &E R (4)
Geographical information HEER
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets EEIRDEE(ATBEVBEER
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets and deferred BIERIGSEEZIEREEE) 2B AL
tax assets) is based on the physical location of the assets or ENRBEEERMAME SN EEM
location of operation in case of interests in associate. The H(ERBMERNRER)ED - BFZ
geographical location of customers is based on the location at HEMEDRBEERHEREXNE R
which the services were provided or the goods were delivered. BEIABE D o
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the LWTAEEIRRBEE ZREE &K
specified non-current assets and revenue from external BINBREPZWEZ oM RMENE
customers, analysed by the geographical location. DHT) o
Specified Revenue from
non-current assets external customers
EEFRBDEE REHNBEF 2Rz

Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (FT1EH ) 239,366
75,303

314,669 343,609 48,042

Macau ST

Information about a major customer

None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.

2024
—E-MEFE
HK$’000
BT T

2023 2024 2023
= TEZMF ey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T BEETIT

45,825
80,170 2,217

ER—BFXEEFHNER
REBEEZT-_MFRER-_ZT-_=F+=
A=+—HBLFE #BEENEFL
REBUER L BIZE10%3 A £ ©
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7. RBERSAR

Interest charges on bank borrowings
Interest charges on lease liabilities
(note 35(a))

2024

—E-EFE

HK$’000

BETT

RITEEFN SR 6,881
HEBBFBRAX

(Ff#E35(a)) 501

7,382

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

8.  BRETFRBiAIEH

2024
—E-MmF
HK$’000
BT T

Loss before income tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation:
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Other properties leased for own use
(under lease arrangement)
Exchange loss/(gain), net
Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments) (note 11)

Rentals received/receivable from
investment properties less direct
outgoings of HK$757,000 (2023:
HK$356,000)

Short-term lease expenses

BT IS B AT B RN,
(REA) T HIIE B & 518K -

% B AT &
e
¥ BE &R E
FAEEE
—HENHERZHiaE
(AEZHT)
&8 () F5
EERAMX
(BIEEZEEHFH)
GESRD)
Bl TEUIREMERESRE
¥ 1B 757,0000T
(Z=2==F:

7B #356,0007T )
EHTHERS

(2,417)
456

S 75 i 2 B RE
+ZA=t—ALEE

2023
—E o=

HK$’000
BT

9,896

918

10,814

2023
o=
HK$’000
BT T

550

2,433

9,641
(992)

23,981

(2,440)
456
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)

—N\

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT 9.  FrigmiK L

dim

=y

2024 2023
—F-nmEF i
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax (note 29)

BRI TE — FANEH

BT IE (K 7E29)

(4,229)

(4,229)

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is
calculated at tax rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year except for one
subsidiary of the Company which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, first HK$2 million of the qualifying
entity is taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2 million are
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities that are subject to Hong
Kong Profits tax but not qualified for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime are taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not derive
any estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong for the current
and prior years.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2023: 12%).

The Group operates in certain jurisdictions where the Pillar Two
Rules are enacted but not effective. However, as the Group’s
consolidated annual revenue is expected to be less than
EUR750 million, the management of the Group considered the
Group is not liable to top-up tax under the Pillar Two Rules.

REBEBZIBEEMNER - RFEAR
BAEERERD R MIKL16.5%H X
E MARAN—RHEBAR M
LFEBHREAETHAKRER - BE
FEHEMBE  AERRBIZHE
B - HETBIR8.25% N - B
BB EZFBEA16.5% %
oo MBETETHMERERES 2A
AILA16.5% < Hi— T BB -

HRASEAFEBEFELER
BRELEMMGEERTOEN - 8
BREAMBRRELBENSHE
o

RBRPITRAE AR R R ARG - RORPIEE
AL K& 2 B AR ZAR12% (=
T 1 12%) ZBREBNRPIFF
B o

AEBEEE T EME R ARERN A
“HAMBRZEERANES - AW
RMRAKE OGRS FE RS A HE
R75EBUT - ARBEEEERRAE
BrFEEREZ T BRIBAETR o
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INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED) 9.

Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss
at applicable tax rate is as follows:

Loss before income tax

BRATIS BRI 1R

Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5%

(2023: 16.5%) in Hong Kong

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

as deferred tax assets

Tax effect of other temporary differences

not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses preciously

not recognised

Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax
assets previously not recognised

BEBEERE16.5%(=ZF
T=F 16.5%) 5 EFE
FEEMBIERERLE 2B
RAZ AR ERFE
AR S 2 RIS 2
BEZERMA Z FRIE &
KERBELEHBEEZ
REBBZHETE
FERHMERER Y
k32
BRBERERZ
TRIEE 18
MRS AR 2 EER IR
BEIHRBHE

PSR 5 A (48)
RERARERFENERE S EEE
B8 2 FRHRAT ¢
2024 2023
—EmF —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(32,392) (33,129)
(5,345) (5,466)
431 299
2,250 2,620
(733) (1,133)
2,729 4,461
388 (396)
(266) —
(4,614)

Income tax credit

PSR

(4,229)

113



114 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B % # % Mt 5

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. &MkEE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of RARHEB ABRMEREREETR
the Company is based on the following data: BATEEE
2024 2023
—E-lmEF —To=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Loss for the year KEEEE
Loss attributable to owners RABER AELEE
of the Company (31,086) (28,736)
‘000
T
Number of ordinary shares ZERRE
Weighted average number of ordinary METEEREANGENE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating T SE A AN S 15 8
basic loss per share 326,077 326,077
For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the A EEE TS _NER-_ZE_=F
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no adjustment has + A=+ BLFEZBREEES
been made as the exercise of the outstanding share options B mEELRAE  RATERITE
has an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. BIRESHEREABEERE S

& o
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * %5 & B %5 #Ht % Mt 51

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « &7 —F 14— H=+—HI F&F

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and staff benefits
Commission e
Retirement benefit costs (note 12)

e RMRETIERN

BARBRIRA (HEE12)

flé B 45 F1| BH =<

2024 2023

—EopmE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT P T IT
23,166 22,952
407 445
588 584
24,161 23,981

12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$588,000
(2023: HK$584,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2023: nil).

12, BIRAEA

REBERGEREETIEERM
Bz BFIMERBEEIR(B=F
ZTFE+_A-RARER) AEH
2MAEBRBAZTEAEEN R NE
ATEEFE([BERE])  AHHE
BEREERFEHHER - RIFBESF
g EERHREESEHANEERM
PR AR % AL AT IR - X E A
HERALRZRR - 8 ABEBEA
FRE-ZF-OFA-BEZLH
78 #25,0007T 15 % # ¥ 30,000 7T ° 58
A EIHRI AR -

AEBZABSTIRIAE(BIES
EE 2 H5R) £EES588,000L (=
T =4 B#584,0007T) B RN ERE
RERAXZ - BEFEREHRKTERLD
AEEZBBERFOKFE(ZE_=F:
) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -« 4 & M %5 ) £ M 5

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 13. # FM4 & h 4 o 35 A

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS +

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EE=EME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and ENRENES BTN
payable to the directors are as follows: T

Salaries and Retirement
Fees allowances benefit costs Total
ik HEeREE EHREIEAE @it
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BT T BT

Year ended 31 December BZE-ZE-mE+=A
2024 =t+-HLEE

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel YRR AL
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia S+
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania kB %+

Independent Non-Executive B kH{TEE

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAGEE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing BmEREE
Ms. Ho Ting Mei iRt
Mr. Wu Bin Quan REELE

Year ended 31 December BE-E-=E+4ZH

2023 =+-BLEEE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel LRREE 240 3,720 12 3,972
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia BRRm T 600 3,024 30 3,654
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania kA& + = 3,052 58 3,110

Independent Non-Executive BIiFHTEES

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAERE 60 - - 60
Mr. Lau Pui Wing e peta 60 - - 60
Ms. Ho Ting Mei gL+ 60 - - 60
Mr. Wu Bin Quan RMeEs 60 - - 60

1,080 9,796 100 10,976
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * %5 & B %5 #Ht % Mt 51

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « &7 —F 14— H=+—HI F&F

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2028.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include three (2023: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2023: two) highest paid individual
are as follows:

13, # R <E S T 4% dc e B
+ (%)

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and other
benefits
Retirement benefit costs

L RO

¥ RRREAMET

EEME(E)
BHE_Z_NEFER-_ZT_=F
+-_A=+—BItFE UE
EERESREREEMNS -

HE-_Z-_NFR-ZZT-=F
+-A=+—BLEE K&
I RkZ TS FERE
EEBMAXZEB S INALRE
BB SEABB

f& -

TEBRSHFMAL

HE-_T-_NF+-A=+—
BIEFE AEEREHRSH
MALBEE=ZZ (T =4
=E)EF AME2HRLEX
M@z 2R B RERS
BTMEBE(ZEZ=F: WHA)

BEoFMALZMENT
2024 2023
—E-E =&
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
2,805
83

2,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © % & B %5 $it & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 » # %= —E U+ —FH=+—HI - FZ

13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13. FEHMME I 4 5= A
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS + (#48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEESHFMAL(E)
The emoluments of this remaining two (2023: two) BRTITWME(ZEZ_=F : WB)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands: SEEFMATZBHMENFUT
#HE -
Number of individuals
A
2024 2023
—E-_F —E=F
Emolument bands B <& 6 &
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 TEHH1,000,0007T =

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 75#1,000,001 T2
71,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 T E
7 #2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 782,000,001 T E
7B #2 500,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * %5 & B %5 #Ht % Mt 51

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. %2 - &5 Mkt

Right-of-use
Owned assets assets
REEE GREEE
Other Furniture,
properties fixtures
Leasehold land leased  Leasehold  and office
and buildings ~ for ownuse improvements  equipment Motor vehicle Total

B
et FEEUMER BE BEsE
Rge  2EbNE 26 RUAERE HE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Abtr  B%tr BT EBTn BEfn B%fn
(note (b)) (note (@)
(s (Wita)

Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-S_ET-A=t-BLER

Opening net carrying amount BUEESE 218522 7212 160 640 - 226,534
Effect of lease modification i - 6,083 - - - 6,083
Additions WE - 6,183 330 1,661 - 8,174
Depreciation Vit (1,169) (9,641) (138) (1,130 - (12,074)
Impairment (note (c) TE(H ) - (1,508) = = - (1,508)
Closing net carrying amount HREETE 217,357 8329 352 117 = 207,209
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=5+-R=1-H

Cost i 222,592 42,757 3,085 6,230 936 275,600
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2ERNE (5,235 (34,428) (2733 (5,059) (936) 48,391)
Net carrying amount FEE 217,357 8329 352 117 - 207,209
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-R-MET-ACT-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount BORERE 217,357 8,329 352 227,200
Effect of lease modification BEBITNEE - 13,580 - 13,580
Additions #E - - 60 64
Depreciation il (2,565) (10,306) (168) (14,008)
Impairment (note (c)) WEREC) - (848) (32) (880)
Closing net carrying amount BRRERE 214,192 10,755 212 225,965
At 31 December 2024 RZB-mETZA=1-H

Cost A 202,592 56,337 3,145 6,234 208,499
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z:HTERAE (7,800) (45,582) (2,933) (6,028) (62,534)

Net carrying amount BEFE 214,792 10,755 212 206 225,965




CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes:

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

The Group owns a guesthouse building where its
hospitality facilities are primarily located. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are not presented separately as the
payments made are not allocated reliably among the
land and building portion.

Other properties leased for own use mainly include
premises leased for the operations of providing hair
styling services, guesthouse and hostel leased for the
provision of hospitality services and office premises.
Their periodic rent are fixed over the lease terms, and
the leases are generally negotiated for an initial period of
one to three years (2023: one to three years). Some of
these leases contain an option to renew the leases for
an addition period of one to two years (2023: two to four
years). The renewal option is to provide flexibility to align
the need of the Group and it is assessed by the Group,
after evaluated all relevant facts and circumstances,
that it is not reasonably certain to extend the lease term.
Rental associated with the optional period are therefore
not included in the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. Details about the lease liabilities
recognised for these leases are disclosed in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land and buildings
with net carrying amount of HK$211,193,000 (2023:
HK$213,595,000) was pledged to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in note
28.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors
reviewed the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and other non-current assets to determine whether
impairment indications existed. Impairment indications
existed on the hair styling segment and the hospitality
services segment. For the purpose of performing
impairment assessment for these segments, each of
the hair styling segment and the individual guesthouses
and hostel of the hospitality services segment are
identified as a separate cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
(collectively, the “Subject CGUs”). Corporate assets
were allocated to the Subject CGUs and included as
part of the carrying amounts of the Subject CGUs for
comparing to their recoverable amounts. As at 31
December 2024, impairment loss on right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$848,000 (2023: HK$1,508,000) and
impairment loss on leasehold improvements amounted
to HK$32,000 (2023: nil) were recognised in profit
or loss and the details are explained in the following
paragraphs.

MIEE -

HE T FE+=-F=+—HIFEZE

(#8)

R -—_pmE+ -/ =+—
B @A FMEABBK
211,193,000 c( =& = = :
7B #5213,595,0007T ) M E +
WEREFEERAERTAEE
RIRTTRLE 2 BR - E— 5
SE A HIFE28 ©

RBERR  EFEHAEE
HIZE - B LB AR EHAMm
IRBEENETRETER
BEFR - EREBTDBRAE
RIEDEBEFERETR - BE
%%%%Lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ i)

R ET D B A R F RS 5 BB Y
M%ﬁ?&m%ﬁmﬁﬂﬁ@
YA SELEBEM([REESE
BA)(GEBEAITTEREE
B DEBETDHE
EFRBSELEN - WHE
TREREEAEMEREREN —
By AEBREJKEISEE -
F:Y_@¢+ A=+—

FRREEEREREEE
SQMMOE(_?_n_EZ,%%
1,508,00070) R EWHEEE
BB & 18 ¥ 32,000 (= 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « # = — T —pyE+—F=—+—HIFFEF

Notes: (Continued) Bzt - (88)
(c)  (Continued) (©) (%)
(i) Hair styling segment (i) ERZET DI

In respect of the year ended 31 December
2023, the dampening economic activities
and sluggish consumer sentiment after the
COVID-19 pandemic was having a direct impact
to the recovery progress of markets in Hong
Kong. The recoverable amount of this CGU
of HK$2,628,000 was less than its carrying
amount of HK$3,967,000 comprising mainly
right-of-use assets. Accordingly, impairment
loss of HK$1,339,000 for the right-of-use
assets was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of last year. Based on
the impairment assessment conducted in the
current year, there was no material difference
between the recoverable amount of this CGU
and the carrying amount of this CGU and thus no
impairment loss was made for the current year.
Potential shortfall of HK$650,000 would arise
for the current year had the sales growth rate of
13% as mentioned in the following paragraph
been reduced to 5%.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations,
which comprise cash flow projections of this
CGU prepared based on the financial budget
approved by the directors. The period covered
by the financial budget is 1 year (2023: 2 years).
The key assumptions used by the management
in the value-in-use calculations of the CGU
include (i) sales growth rate of 13% (2023: -9%
to +9%); (i) gross profit margin is maintained at
similar level as have achieved during the current
year; and (iii) pre-tax discount rate of 9.6%
(2023: 11%).

REE-_ZTE-_=F+=
B=+—BIt&EE "
COVID-19 K it 17 18 %
YA E B AR 2R A
HEEBHEHEEMS
MIEHEEEKER
e HREELEER
£z 2z A Wy [ & 58 8 #E
2,628,000 LI EREEH
BEREEENERAE
78 ¥ 3,967,000 7T °
b FREEEREE
18 % # 1,339,000 7T B
NEFEABRRARE
R BIBEBAFEETH
WERE  WRESELE
BB A7 A ] Uk (B & &8 B
ReELEBEMMNEREE
TEEREE  EAK
FEYEREERE &
#8 T — EZ BT il B9 13% $
EHREEEES% A
FE 5 IR B 650,000
TLR)BIEZEE ©

ReEEBEMMHATKE
SEDNBBREAEER
EMETE  BELES
ELXBUREBESIE
BB TEE TR E AR
CRETER - BHEE
FraEmiEaes—F(=
TZ=F:ZF) - F
BERRESELEEMNZ
FREEFEMA X
TREBE : ((HEH
EXE13% (T ==
F 9% ZE+9%) ;5 (i)FE
I 2= 4 F5 50 B K 4F 2 48
ERKFE R (il B AT
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F:11%) o



for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(ii)

Hospitality services segment

Despite the rebound in the tourism sector, it
did not give rise to the anticipated uplift in hotel
performance partly due to the uncertainties
pertaining to the economy and the retail markets
remain weak, and partly due to the changing
spending patterns of residents and tourists.
Each of the guesthouses and hostel in this
segment located at Sheung Wan (the “Sheung
Wan CGU”), North Point (the “North Point
CGU”) and Yau Ma Tei (the “Yau Ma Tei CGU”)
representing a CGU is assessed for impairment
individually.

The recoverable amounts of the North Point
CGU and Yau Ma Tei CGU were less than their
carrying amounts, comprising mainly right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment
— leasehold improvement. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$880,000 was recognised
for these CGUs, which was allocated to the
right-of-use assets of HK$848,000 and to other
property, plant and equipment — leasehold
improvement of HK$32,000. Such loss was
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 #t & Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « # = — T —pyE+—F=—+—HIFFEF

Notes: (Continued) Bzt - (88)
(c)  (Continued) ) (&)

(i)  Hospitality services segment (Continued) (i) RERZRFREDIB(E)

The recoverable amounts of the North Point CGU tARESEESN LM

and Yau Ma Tei CGU were determined based IR e EL B 2]

on value-in-use calculations, which comprise WEl4zERIEFEAE

cash flow projections of these CGUs prepared EfEmMET  BER

based on the financial budgets approved by the HMZEHeEAL BN

directors. The projection period adopted for the BIEEEH AR RTE

CGUs is 1 to 2 years, which commensurate with
the lease term of their leased premises. The key
assumptions used by the management in the
value-in-use calculations of the CGUs include
(i) sales growth rate of 18% for the North Point
CGU and 4% to 8% for the Yau Ma Tei CGU; (ii)
gross profit margin ranged from 10% to 21%;
and (iii) pre-tax discount rate of 9.3% for the
North Point CGU and 9.9% for the Yau Ma Tei
CGU.

The recoverable amount of the Sheung Wan CGU
was less than its carrying amount, comprising
mainly an owned guesthouse classified as
leasehold land and buildings in property,
plant and equipment with carrying amount of
HK$211,193,000 as at 31 December 2024, and
trademarks accounted for as intangible assets
with carrying amount of HK$2,100,000 (before
impairment) as at 31 December 2024 (note 16).
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$498,000
was recognised for the Sheung Wan CGU for
the intangible assets, which was charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year.

BERENRERETRE
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(i)

Hospitality services segment (Continued)
The recoverable amount of the guesthouse was
determined by the using FVLCOD basis with
reference to the valuation conducted by RAVIA
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers who is assessed
by the directors as having the necessary
professional qualification and relevant and
recent valuation experience. The fair value was
determined using direct comparison approach
and was based on recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with
significant adjustments for any differences
in the relevant characteristics of the Group’s
guesthouse. Such fair value determined is level
3 fair value measurement. There is no material
difference in the FVLCOD of the guesthouse
compared with its carrying amount and thus
no impairment loss is recognised for the
guesthouse. For sensitivity purposes, potential
shortfall of less than HK$1 million would arise for
the current year had the cost of disposal which
mainly represents estimated sales commission
been doubled.

The recoverable amount of the trademark was
determined by the management using value-in-
use calculations. The key assumptions used by
the management in the value-in-use calculations
of the trademarks include (i) sales growth rate of
5% (ii) pre-tax discount rate of 13.12%; and (iii)
long-term growth rate of 4%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(iii)

Securities investments and property project
management businesses

In respect of the year ended 31 December
2023, in view of the results from the segments
of securities investments and property project
management, the recoverable amounts of these
segments were estimated to be lower than
their carrying amounts comprising mainly right-
of-use assets by HK$169,000 in aggregate.
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$169,000
for the right-of-use assets was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
of last year. For the current year, impairment
assessment is not required for these segments,
as their carrying amounts as at 31 December
2024 were immaterial.

The recoverable amounts as at 31 December
20283 were determined based on value-in-
use calculations, which comprise cash flow
projections of each of these CGU prepared
based on the financial budgets approved by the
directors. The period covered by the financial
budgets is 1 year. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 11%.
Other key assumptions in the value-in-use
calculations of the CGUs include budgeted
revenue.

These assumptions were determined based on

past performance and management’s expectations
in respect of the market conditions as well as the
economy and political changes which have impact on
the CGU results. The pre-tax discount rate used reflects
the specific risks relate to the business and industry in
which these CGUs are engaged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * %5 & B %5 #Ht % Mt 51

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « &7 —F 14— H=+—HI F&F

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15.

BEY)E

2024 2023
—E_UE —F=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT P T IT
Fair value AEE

At 1 January R—H—H 114,300 128,200
Disposal (note f) & F I8 (M 3Ef) (22,200) =
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33(b)) HE— MM B AR (M5E33(b)) - (9,200)
Net change in fair value* N EEEFE" (5,000) (4,700)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 87,100 114,300
* disclosed as “Fair value loss on investment properties” in the e REAEEBRABRKRBEAS 1REMEZ

consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(@) The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair value
model and are leased to third parties under leases to earn rental
income, further details of which are set out in note 35(b).

(b) The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2024 by RAVIA Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers who is assessed by the Directors as having the
necessary professional qualification and relevant and recent valuation
experience.

(c) The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties has
been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. All of the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of the reporting period are level 3
recurring fair value measurement, which uses significant unobservable
inputs in arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current year or
in prior year.

(d) Fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are determined using
direct comparison approach. Fair values are based on recent market
information about prices of comparable properties with significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

RFERBE] -

(a) AEBMZEEMERBAFEBR T
AERREERERTE=S - UERE
HEW A BEE-—PHFBHRNFE
35(p) °

(b) REBZREVEEDHIR -_T_MF
ToAZ T - HBBIAEREXMGE
Fih QR EHEAERRFIRBAR
WG RARGERERTME - ZAE
MEEETS ERENENEEER
PLEElp iR SR

(©) FEEREWEZNATETE E9H
AZBAVEER(ERREEMBRS
HRIFABRATENE) - RIREHR
MERENEZATERF=EBEFE
AFEFE  AEAFERCERAEKR
TABEHARE - RAFEHLE—F
E E-ERE-EzELEEER - IR
BEARELE=E -

(d) RZTE-_MFR-T=_=ZF+=A
S+-BRZATEDNERAEELEEE
E o AFEENREIBHABATLEYE
BRZMSEERABKE  TRAEEY
EoRB2AREEELERAE -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

° 22

op

SV 5 i % B

HERABERZFHEHIINT

Unobservable inputs

THREGABE

Range of
unobservable inputs

AUBRBAREZHE

Valuation
Properties Location Level technique
L/ES B B& fEER M
Residential properties Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
note (f) approach
EEWE () HE 3 HELEBUE
A retail shop Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
approach
—HZTEE BE 3 HELEBUE
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
—MTEE RPY 3 HELBUE
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
WREYE R 3 HEEBOE
Residential property  Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
EEWHE SR 3 HELBUA

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

WA R LSRRG E

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYMEERRSHENR 5B

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEERRSHENTRHE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

BMEE R RSEETR R (E

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

R R RS EETR 6 (E

N/A (2023: -5% to 5%)

TER(ZF_=F:
-5%ZE5%)

-13% to 20%
(2023: -45% to 0%)
8% E20%(Z T == :
-45%Z0%)

-8% to 0.8%
(2023: -10% to 2%)
8% FE0.8%(—FE =4 :

-10%%E2%)

-19% to 0%
(2023: -7% to 0%)
9% EOR(ZT =4 :
T%ZE0%)

-10% to 2%
(2023: -10% to 5%)
S10%ZE2%(ZF == :

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparable would
result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best use of the
investment properties, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2024, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$26,000,000 (2023: HK$40,200,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further
detailed in note 28.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group disposed
of certain investment properties which are situated in Hong Kong
with carrying amount of HK$22,200,000, at net disposal proceeds
of HK$18,060,000 and thus recognised loss on disposal of
HK$4,140,000.

-10%ZE 5 %)

RAEEYERA LB EL ERZ R
HERMMEZ B BRI EMELN
BREHBIEZATE -

AP TYIR IR A MR A0 BT R
ERBIHE - NEAKERATRER -

R-BE-_MFE+-_A=+—H8  EEE
#) 5 74%26,000,0007C(ZT==F : &
#40,200,00070) 2 & TIREMEDER
AEEERBITEEZRT  GHE—
HREE AR 28 o

HE-_ZT-_NF+ZA=+—HLtF
B ASBHECREAREESE
22,200,000t TIREME - HEMB
FRIAH R85 #18,060,0007T + B FER
H & 51874 4,140,0007T ©
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16.

BRI E

Trademarks, at cost

TP &
2024 2023
—ECNF —F_=
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
1,602 2,100

The Group’s trademarks have finite lives but are renewable
upon expiry at minimal costs. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has
the ability to do so. There is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash inflows for the Group. Accordingly, the trademarks are
considered to have an indefinite life and are not amortised but
tested annually for impairment.

The trademarks together with the relevant property, plant and
equipment including right-of-use assets are included in the
CGU of hospitality services and subject to impairment at least
annually. During the year, impairment loss of HK$498,000
(2023: nil) was recognised for the intangible assets. Further
details about the impairment assessment are set out in note
14(c).

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17.

AEERFRAEEREFH - AR
EmEURERNRTES - BEFRAE
AEBBRIFEEERZE - AAB
BREAAANEEELRSRAFE
RMERYEAARER - Bt &#1R
BRBERBTHEERFHRTIGH
B SEEETRERR

ZEEIREERYE  BmELRRE(E
REREEE)CBENIKE RREFR
BOREELESMN  YHHIDEFF
RERE - AFR - BEEEERME
E518498,0008 T(Z T _=5F : &) °
BRABER R FBRHNHE14(0)

WA R

2024 2023
—EomEF ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT

DIEEEFE

Share of net assets
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17.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Group’s associate are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of ownership
incorporation and Particulars of interest held
Name of company kind of legal entity Principal activities issued capital by the Company
EAR A L it B R ARAR AL
NCIEE HERRER TEEHR BBRITRAFE BERERADL
EGHQ Limited Hong Kong, limited Wholesale of hair pieces 10,000 ordinary 40%
liability company share of HK$10,000
EGHQ Limited & BRAA HERE 7##10,0007T2 40%
10,0000% & @&

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associate that is not material:

TEMIIARBETEALEE AT
2 EERTEAR

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEETIT

For the year ended 31 December
Share of associate’s net loss for the year

BE+T-A=t—BHLEE

DIEEE R B FAEE TR

Share of associate’s other comprehensive 735 B & A &) & A E A

income for the year ENEIL G
Share of associate’s total comprehensive 915 B4 A T4 A
income for the year 2HE W LR
Dividend received from associate B A RIRE
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s A& B2 A rl SR

interests in associate

HAREE
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. #&R-FaEF AHAME T UA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Z W A
INCOME
2023
—R_NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REBZ ETRAFES
at fair value BAYE 807
Financial assets at FVOCI represent listed equity securities in BAEEFAEMEZEBAZBBE
Hong Kong, which are held for long-term and are non-trading EEEHEEAEBIEETHE RS
in nature. Fair values of these listed equity securities have been B PRGBS - Z%E FHRAE
measured as described in note 38.1(v). E AV ED TEE  HEHRME
38.1(v) °
2024 2023
—ECoNmE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Fair value NFE
At 1 January n—A—H 5,007
Disposal = (4,646)
Changes in fair value NEEE 446
At 31 December R+=—HB=+—8 807
19. INVENTORIES 19. #&
2024 2023
—R_NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Consumable stocks URRE 71 83
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included Rz T -—mWE+-—BF=+—8H1+
in cost of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 EERAEEIRAMNERLSZTF
amounted to HK$552,000 (2023: HK$697,000). ERARAEES52000 T (- —=

£ JB¥697,0007T) °
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. A PEFIAB IR Z B E
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS JEE

2024 2023
—EMEF —E_=

HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETIT

Listed equity securities held for trading,  #{EE&E 7 FRAE
at fair value BATE

51,098

Financial assets at FVTPL represent listed equity securities
held for trading. The fair value of the listed equity securities
have been measured as described in note 38.1(v).

BRAFEFABR M B EERTE
BEEZLEMRAES - LTRAES
B A FEDRMEESSA (V) PTtET & -

2024 2023
—EolmE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT

Fair value A¥{E
At 1 January n—A—H 51,098 58,940
Purchase g B 40,712 7,266
Disposal & (46,723) (3,548)
Changes in fair value NEEEE (2,087) (11,560)
At 31 December A+=-—BA=+—H 43,000 51,098
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AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21. RERE

RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS

Loan receivables (note) FEME SR (HIEE)
Other receivables A B UL BR R
Prepayments TEfRTRIR
Deposits paid BfiES
Analysed into: aRiw=1
Current assets mENEE
Non-current assets IERBNEE
Note: Mz -
Loan receivables R E R

Less: Amount due within one year
classified as current assets

B D RBRBDEER —FN
BB e R

Amount due after one year classified as
non-current assets

DRRIERDEENR—F1&
Edlptil:0p 7 e

The loan receivables are unsecured, interest bearing at fixed
annual rates ranged from 3% to 12% (2023: 3% to 12%) and
repayable in accordance with the agreed repayment schedule.

T A ORAK

4 JFEUT HOH

2024
—2-nmE
HK$’000
BETT

2,642
1,304

601
4,349

8,896

2024
—2-nmEF
HK$’000
BETT

2024
ik
HK$’000
BETT

2,642

(2,400)

EWE R AEET - ZE TR X
S3%E12%(—Z
BHEERMTENERHRERS -

7 ——ﬂz

2023
—E=F
HK$’000
BEETIT

2,845
1,868

725
4,290

9,728

2023
—Eo=F
HK$’000
BEETIT

9,728

9,728

2023
—E-=F
HK$’000
BEETIT

2,845

(2,845)

N F
3%E12%) st
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A5 6 B R B AR

e PR — MR

ZEINHRBELAEERR 2ERER
EEFRER -

B8 RRAT A B
e RBTEHEIENTEE -

2024 2023
—E-_F —E=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BEETIT

9,410 7,690
3,000 4,000

12,410 11,690

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM NON- 22.
CONTROLLING INTEREST/AN
ASSOCIATE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
term of repayment.
23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23.
Cash and bank balances include the following:
Cash at bank and in hand wITRFHEES
Short-term bank deposit HIRTTIER
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTAE
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates.
24. TRADE PAYABLES 24.

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

RITAESREBARTERNENZH
MEFE - BHMEMERZHR - T3
BEREBZABREFLME @ K
B2 HTE BT SR F R BRERR B,

B R IRK
REEMK - AEEZ EEEBAER
ZEBATREEEMMT :

2024 2023
—EMmF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

0-30 days 0£30H
31-60 days 31£260H
61-90 days 61290H

52 64
20 16
4 _

80

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled
on 30 to 60 days terms.

EBEREMERA2E R —KRRNI0E60
REIR AL -
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25.  HoAth BEAST R 3R K E F Tk IA
2024 2023
—ECNF —F_=

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Accrual for staff costs 8 TR AR ERT 3R 4,269 2,653

Other payable and accruals HAth FE AR SR R FE AT 5RIR 2,630 2,201
Deposits received Blkize 612 705
Provision for long service payment REIRB BB 574 625

8,085 6,184

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 26. JEATBRFIE

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no ERAZXBAERE  pELEETS
fixed term of repayment. FREARR -
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. GHIAE

2024 2023
—E-EFE —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T

Contract liabilities arising from KA IRIE MR EF RS

Hospitality services AHBEE 124
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. H#81&E(H)
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: FELSNBBESEZ —RNRIERD
T

2023

—EC=4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 January Wn—HB—H 124 70
Revenue recognised during the year FRERN (124) (70)

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of I)}RE& R RS 2 FE U R

billing in advance of hospitality services B AEABAEEM 116 124

At 31 December N+=-—A=+—H 116 124
Advances are normally required before rendering the 1‘1‘*’73_%*&“7?%1 IRIE B R AF R TS A
hospitality services. All hospitality service contracts are for TIELT o Fﬁﬁﬁ&%& KT RIEE 4
periods of once year or less, the transaction price allocated to 7%3,@ FHIUAT - PETREBITED
the unsatisfied contract is not disclosed as permitted under HRX BB EIRE TSI RELE

HKFRS 15, and are billed based on monthly basis. BIZE155 FLAEE » WIRAKHE -
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 28. SRATEE (CH )
2024 2023
—E-mF ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Bank Borrowings RITEE 120,769 129,403
Analysed into: B
Current liabilities mEaE 113,942 122,114
Non-current liabilities ERHARE 6,827 7,289
120,769 129,403
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled REBZRITEERE R IBHTHET
repayment set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect EEEBRET 2N (RBENIERE
of any repayment on demand clause is as follows: RERIGEROTE)DT -
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT T BETT
Repayment: B
Within 1 year —FR 109,951 113,941
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFRN 2,597 2,602
After 2 years but within 5 years MEFEBERFR 3,351 5,924
After 5 years HE% 4,870 6,936

120,769 129,403
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The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting
period, all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.25% to 1.4% or prime
rate minus 3.00% (2023: HIBOR plus 1% to 1.4% or prime
rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%) per annum. The interest rates of
the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024 ranged
from 2.63% to 5.98% (2023: 3.13% to 7.06%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are
secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and investment properties with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$211,193,000 (2023: HK$213,595,000) and
HK$26,000,000 (2023: HK$40,200,000) respectively, and also
corporate guarantee given by the Company to the extent of

HK$120,769,000 (2023: HK$129,403,000).

&5 G I B R B R

RBEBR - NEBZEBITEEGINU
BEGHE)  HRIREBRITRERE
(TEBRITREFRLE]) MFEEA.25%
F1.4% K IR R E R FI LR F 8.3.00%
FE(ZE==F : HBRITRERE
IEBA%E1.4% 8 7 & B B F KR
FB295%E3.00%) c R-ZT M4
+=—A=+—H8 A£EBEZRTEE
FERRNF2.63%E598% (T ==
F:3.13%%E7.06%) °

AEEZRITEE RBITRE T AR
SEREE D BI%E%211,193,0007T

—ZT =4 : #¥213,595,0007T) °
7B ¥ 26,000,000 L ( ZE = =F : &
#£40,200,00070) 2 5 TYWE - BE X
REMIREYE  URAAFTEHZ
IR AEK120,769,000T(ZE ==
F B 1129,403,0007T) 7 A AIER
TEH IR o
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29. DEFERRED TAX

Details of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and
their movements during the current and prior years are as

29. IEEFIIH

AEERAFERBEFRERZE
ERBEE /(BB REEBHZFE

follows: R
Impairment  Impairment Fair value
Accelerated loss on loss on changes of
tax  right-of-use intangible Tax investment
depreciation assets assets losses properties Total
FRELE BV EE RENZ
MERERE HEEE HEEE HEER 2AVEED it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BB BB EETT EETT EETT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=F-A-H (4,028) 468 - - (2,684) (6,244)
Charged to profit or loss (note )~ FIB% 0k 2 A (FiH9) (633) 268 = 4,614 = 4,229

At 31 December 2023 and R-B-=£+-B=t+-HR

4,614 (2,684) (2,015)
- 598 546

4,614 (2,086) (1,469)

2024 2023
—EMmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

1 January 2024 “5-mE-F-A (4,681)
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) ~ FMB AT 1K 7 29 (Fi3H9) 68
At 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+TZA
=t+-H (4,613)
Represented by: K -
Deferred tax assets BEEFHIBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBEE

771 722
(2,240) (2,737)

(1,469) (2,015)
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. RIEFLIA (A])
At 31 December 2024, the Group had tax losses of R-EBE-_NNE+-_A=+—H K&
approximately HK$411,639,000 (2023: HK$403,172,000) B %) 75 ¥ 411,639,000t (= &F = =
available for offset against future profit. Deferred tax F A #408,172,0007T) 2 HIEEH
assets of HK$4,614,000 (2023: HK$4,614,000) have been Ba AN AL ST c S IBEEE
recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$27,966,000 B 27 966,000 (ZE =4 : B
(2023: HK$27,966,000). No deferred tax assets have ¥ 27,966,0007T ) M RIE LT IE B &
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses BHA46140000 (=B =_=ZF : &
of HK$383,673,000 (2023: HK$375,206,000) due to the #5 4,614,000 7T ) ° H3 7 K 2R 5 Fl 2R
unpredictability of future profit streams. Under current tax BRZTHEEY  WERGRTEERBE
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. 383,673,000 L( — T - =4 : B
375,206,0007T ) FERBELEH HE E
BYE B A2 BIEES - FHIBEEEAE
PREAAE#E o
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
BREERE2TZEER
Number of Nominal value
Shares HK$°000
ROBE EHEB%YTR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 RZBE-_=F—HF—Q8- =%
and 31 December 2024 Z=EF+ZA=+—8k
bt =S el s Bty Sl =l 2,000,000,000 400,000
Issue and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 R-—E-_=F—HF—H =%
and 31 December 2024 —_=F+-A=+—8k

—E-NF+-_A=+—H

326,077,423
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A share option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 and 30
May 2019 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Upon the expiry of
the Existing Share Option Scheme on 21 May 2019, no further
option can be offered thereunder but any options granted prior
to such expiry but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable. A new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2019. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of
any member of the Group, any advisors and service providers
of any member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
the options by each of the relevant grantees.

RABRBER _ZETAFRAA -+
BR-ZZ-NAFREA=THETZR
RAFAS LBBZRBRFMBER
et ([REBMRETE]) - %A
gt E 2 T2 B MR AEN SR
BAKBEFLERZ2EE - AR
B2EERARNRBREBR ZEEN
SHNRSAAARERND ZEE -
REBREFEAR -_ZT-NFHA
“t—HIEIH FEBHBRUREEZRD
E BB AR - AT B ER TR L
WARTTEZBRESEEE U RA T
T - ARBRBER_F-NAFRHA
STHETZRREFAELAEBY
RBERRAFEIRAE S ([ 3B
AHED)  REBHBRESS  EF
eARNBERANEBREAKERRZE
= BB UERAKEEAKERF
2 AT 0] R ] % R 75 £ 7 9 o B AR
UREARA RN - RBEKTER
To=Fdhz&"%E  (\ARABRNHR
RHBREE BRIz WmhiE : (i)
BOREZRRLBREE BT AER
7 BEMR AT FHRTE - Rk
MEE - FEEARARRZHRL
ZIERER - XHEBITZRBAR

& -



142 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B % # % Mt 5

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « #Z - ZE 14— H=1+—HI FF

31. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 31. DABAn At 2 w8 (48)
(CONTINUED)
The options vest on the condition that the grantee is a R BB AEF ARERE
participant of the New Share Option Scheme from the date of RERHEERETERRBZE AR
options grant to the commencement date of the exercisable IER AR - ERBBEIERETEZ
period of the options and the participant is not required to S A MBREAEANBEIEFRER
achieve any performance targets before any share options B2 2 E R B IR R R /T {E A
granted under the New Share Option Scheme can be EREMEERR -
exercised.
Movements of the share options during the year and their fé{i;?"%&% BB & H Nt 91T

Sa0 b -

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

Weighted
Number of average
options exercise price
hn#EF g
BRERE TEE
HK$
ik
Outstanding at 1 January 2023, R-ZZE_=F—H—H-
31 December 2023 and “ECE=FT-A=ZT—A
31 December 2024 B2 EF A=+
B ARITHE 12,548,000
Exercisable at 1 January 2023, E’\\—7 —=%—HF—H-
31 December 2023 and —FT_=F+_A=+—H

A—ZE_NE+—A=1+—

31 December 2024 B TiE 12,548,000




31.

AL (RE) FRAF - T PUFEFEHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(CONTINUED)

Sl

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023. The exercise prices and exercise
periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

2024 and 2023

Number of
options

Exercise price

DUy S AT 2 FiAE (48)

E TATT Ausmamn
5 o AR B R 2 R 1T IR 2 17
EERTESOT

Exercise period

“ECNER-ZF=F BREHAE TEE TS
HK$
P
Granted on 14 Sept 2016 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 — 13 Sept 2026
—E-X"FNLA+HAZE
RZE—ARFELATTAFRDY —E-RFNA+T=H
Granted on 19 Sept 2017 3,096,000 0.698 19 Sept 2017 — 18 Sept 2027
—E—tFNA+NAZE
RZE—+F AT NLARDY —EEFNA+NH
Granted on 3 Oct 2018 3,096,000 0.395 3 0Oct 2018 — 2 Oct 2028
—E-N\F+H=RZE
RZE—-N\F+A=ZHEH 2 N\F+AHZH
Granted on 16 Oct 2019 3,260,000 0.250 16 OCt 2019 — 15 Oct 2029
—hFE+AR+ABE
RZE—-NFE+A+BERD fyfﬂ¢+ﬁ+ﬂﬁ
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2024 had a RTFEEEREN_Z-_WUWE+_H

weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.3 years (2023:

4.3 years).

Er— EZM%%ﬂ%TAmE&%
BI3F(ZE=F : 4.3%F) o
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. YERCSEIIAES AR ISR
POSITION OF HOLDING COMPANY
2024
—=-mEF
Notes HK$’000
M EE BET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRAIZEKE
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments £t [ U BR 3¢ K T8 1~ 5718 405
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A B FR IR 298,611
Cash and bank balances Ra MIRTT4E R 177
299,193
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals E e BR R R JEET 5RIE 1,442
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 120,459
Amount due to a shareholder JE — R ERFIE 15,000
136,901
Net current assets REBEEFE 162,292
Net assets EEFE 212,092
EQUITY R
Share capital A% A 30 65,215
Reserves i 34 146,877
Total equity A 212,092

On behalf of the directors

RERE=S

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel

B iE KA
Director Director
EE E

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania

2023

—E_=F
HK$’000
ST IT

49,800

485
323,168
4,217

327,870

660
121,281
15,000

136,941

190,929

240,729

65,215
175,514

240,729



PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. K& REEE
(a) Asat 31 December 2024, the Company had direct and (@ R=-Z-_@mFE+=-_A=+-—
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: B ARQEIRFE T EBRR
ZEENEEER
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  and place of operations issued capital Company
LN
AR L E R FisaER
GRS EAER TEXBRBEHE BRTRAGFE ZBEDL
Held directly:
EERE:
Century Legend British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 63,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Century Legend Investments RBRELHE  BBRAR AEANEREER BREEIETZ 100%
Limited 63,0001 & Bk
Century Legend Hong Kong, Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Management Limited limited liability company management services of HK$1,000,000
in Hong Kong
e EEERERAR BB ARLA REBREMEERRS  #%1,000,0007T2 100%
1,000,0008% & R
Century Legend British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Entertainment Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
tHEREREFRAF KERRES BRAR  REBREREALER 1R AREBR 100%
CL Property Hong Kong, limited Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Investments Limited liability company in Hong Kong
EREXREERAT B8 BRATF REBREREER BEIT AREER 100%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © %% &

for the year ended 31 December 2024

(a)

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

(a)

and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(Continued)

Name of company

DNAEH

Held indirectly:
BEEA

Gentury Legend
Finance Limited

HEREREBRAA

Century Legend Strategic
Investments Limited

HERERBRE

ARRA

EA Interior Contracting Limited

EA Interior Contracting Limited

CL Entertainment Limited

RREARAF

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

SR LR
HEAER

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% BRAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BB ARLA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company

Bt ARDA

Principal activities
and place of operations

TERBREEHH

Provision of commercial
and personal loans
in Hong Kong

REAREEER
MAER

Investment holding and
trading securities
in Hong Kong

RERNSRE
BRREEES

Provision of interior
and property project
management service
RUEARNFEIERER
R%

Investment holding and
property investment
in Macau

REFEEREERR
NERE

S 5 R MY R

R-ZE-_WF+ =

A=+-

B ARAFATIHERR

ZEERNEZEER

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTRAHR

10,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$10,000,000

#10,000,0007T.2
10,000,000/ L 3@ A%

10,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$10,000,000;
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$5,000,000

7%£10,000,0007T 2
10,000,0008% & &A% :
7#5,000,0007T2
5,000,008 &5 E 1
ERRR

100 ordinary shares of
HK$100

100702 100 LBk
10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

7%10,00072.210,0008%

(&)

Percentage
of interest
held by the
Company

ARF
iEEReE
LB

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



(a)
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45 B A R M 5E
HE T FE+=-F=+—HIFEZE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct (a)

and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(Continued)

Name of company

ACEL:

Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE : (E)

Headquarters Limited

BRERAT

Century Legend
Properties Limited

HEREHERRAF

Simple Way Limited
HEARRAT
H1 Company Limited

H1 Company Limited

Hong Kong Macau
Travel Limited

ARKERRAF

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

SR
N

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% ARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&E  BRATF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B ARLA

Principal activities

and place of operations

FTERBREEWE

Operation of a hair salon
under the brand name
of “Headquarters”
in Hong Kong

BB M
[Headquarters |
BEEUR

Investment holding,
property investments
and trading securities
in Hong Kong

REBREREAR -
NERBERBEERS

Inactive

ChE

I

License holding

Bz

Provision of travel agency
services in Hong Kong

RERB R TH RS

R-ZE-_WF+ =

A=+-—

B ARAFATIHERR

ZEZRNEZER

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTRAHE

(&)

Percentage
of interest
held by the
Company
LN
fiigser: 3+
2B

150,000 ordinary shares of 58%
HK$3,827,496

JE#E3,827,4967L2 58%
150,000/ % &

1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%

BEIT RS RR 100%

100 ordinary shares of 58%
HK$100

BT RS BR 58%

10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$10,000

7 110,0007T 100%
210,000 L @K

500,000 ordinary shares of 100%
HK$500,000

75%500,0007T.2 100%

500,000 & A
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

(a)

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct (a)

and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(Continued)

Name of company

DNAEH

Held indirectly: (Continued)

BERE (&)

Homy Group Plus Limited
(“Homy Group Plus”)
Homy Group Plus Limited

HRL Limited

HRL Limited

Silver Billion Enterprises Limited

RECFARAAF

Full Wave Development Limited

BEEREBRLA
HGNP One Limited

HGNP One Limited

HGNP Plus Limited

HGNP Plus Limited

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

SA LR
HEAER

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t ARLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
& BRATF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRATA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&L ARDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&% - ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&g ARDA

Principal activities
and place of operations

TERBREEHH

Provision of
hospitality service

BRARIRIE R IR

Holding of hostel license
RARKEER
Provision of

hospitality service
RERE RAFERE
Provision of

hospitality service
REIRE R AR

Holding of hostel license

BAKEER

Holding of hostel license

BRERSER

S 5 R MY R

R-ZE-_WF+ =

A=+-

B ARAFATIHERR

ZEERNEZEER

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTRAHE

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

10,0002
10,0008 & 3@ %

100 ordinary shares of
HK$100

FE1007T,2 1008 E AR
1 ordinary share of HK$1
BEIT AREER
1 ordinary share of HK$1
BT IR G AR

100 ordinary shares of
HK$100

BE10072
1000k & &

100 ordinary shares of
HK$100

BEA100TZ
100k & R

(&)

Percentage
of interest
held by the
Company

ARF
iEEReE
2B

70%

70%

70%
70%

70%
70%
70%
70%
70%

70%

70%

70%



(a)

AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. Mt wrlEHE (48)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct (a) N—_ZT-_WE+_-AB=+—
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: B AQEIFETIHEBR R
(Continued) ZEEREEER  (8)
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  and place of operations issued capital Company
LN
FE AR ALt B Fi&EES
INTEE EAER FTEXBRBENE BERTRAFE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE : (8)
HGNP Three Limited Hong Kong, limited Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary shares of 70%
liability company HK$100
HGNP Three Limited &E BRATF RAKEER 10072 70%
100/ & i@k
HGNP Four Limited Hong Kong, limited Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary shares of 70%
liability company HK$100
HGNP Four Limited &E BRAF BARSER 10072 70%
100fR R
HGNP Six Limited Hong Kong, limited Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary shares of 70%
liability company HK$100
HGNP Six Limited BE  BRAF RERERR 10072 70%
1008k Lk
Macau Mesquita Homy Macau, limited Inactive Macau Pataca (“MOP”) 42%
Inn Limited (“Macau Mesquita”)  liability company 25,000 (Note)
RRERRRERE B BRAA Emex RPIH ([EFI% ])25,0007T 42%
BRAR(BRMPEEE]) (B)
Note: Bzt -

The Company holds 70% equity interest in Homy Group Plus whereas
Homy Group Plus holds 60% equity interest in Macau Mesquita, thus,
the Group effectively holds 42% equity interest in Macau Mesquita. The
Company has control over Macau Mesquita through Homy Group Plus.

AN A &) # & Homy Group Plus 70% %
# - MHomy Group Plus# A RFTE &1
60%HE - At ANEBEERFEERFIE
2l#542% 8 o A AFE BHomy Group
Plustz 5 R FIE2I# -
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 « # = — T —pyE+—F=—+—HIFFEF

(a) As at 31 December 2024, the Company had direct
and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

(a) R=_TE-_@mF+=-—A=+—8"
RARFETNIMBRARICE

dividends or to participate in any distribution in winding up.
They carry no rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at

B MESEFENEADEN

REEEERTARRAGES -

(Continued) BREEER - (8)
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity  and place of operations issued capital Company
LN
TR L B R sy 33
NEER EAER TEXBRBEHE BRTRAFE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE ()
Century Legend Properties Macau, limited Investment holding MOP25,000 100%
(Macau) Limited liability company in Macau
g2 mE (RFT) B BRAR MR EREER JRFI%25,0007 100%
BRAA
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, limited Property investments MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited liability company in Macau
R RENERE B BRAA WRFRENERE JBF3%25,0007 100%
BB A7
CL MLO12 Property Macau, limited Property investments MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited liability company in Macau
trEMLO12Y %R 4 BF BRAA REFRESYERE BPI#25,0007T 100%
BRAF
CL Pawn, Watch & Macau, limited Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Jewellery Limited liability company
HREREZKE B BRAR Emex JRPI#25,0007C 100%
BRAR
The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to * EBREREEROHER EEEERR

TR o
i

BERMBRRAGRNBRAG LRE -

any general meeting.

BEAR B 2 IR R B 4T (7 (8%
BE(CT-=F ) -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year (2023: nil).



g () FRAF - —F IUEFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * %5 & B %5 #Ht % Mt 51

for the year ended 31 December 2024 « &7 —F 14— H=+—HI F&F

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. M@ R ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary (b) HE—REMHNEAT
On 31 August 2023, the Company disposed of 100% RZE_=F#NA=+—80 "
equity interest in Max Rise Investments Limited (“Max RARAANEER—EBLE=
Rise”), one of the Company’s subsidiaries to an FTHERARED —FHHEBEA
independent third party of the Group. The consideration AIEEEREBRAR(BE])
of the disposal was HK$8,300,000. Before disposal, HI100% %4 - HEBBEMRE
Max Rise was holding an investment property for & %8 A7 #8,300,0007T ° A
earning rental income. BH C BRAFE —HEREME

AEERFE 2 A o

Loss of HK$900,000 arising from the disposal of Max & B 7R E A &5 18 78 #£900,000
Rise was included in the consolidated statement of TEFALZAEEZAWARE -
comprehensive income and calculated as follows: HEWT
2023
—Eg-=
HK$°000
BT T
Cash consideration HERE 8,300
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE -

- Investment properties RS- ES 9,200
Loss on disposal HeEEIFEE 900
The consideration of HK$8,300,000 from the disposal TESTHEMBRESCEBE
was settled in cash during the year 2023, and was used 8,300,000t ERN =T -_=F 4
for financing the Group’s operations. B BZEREAEALTEE

BERMES -
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for the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—T-mF+=-F=+—HIFEZE

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gain on
transfer from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve represents the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

Share option reserve
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.15.

W

422 AN
A‘I:l

HF 5 i 3R B AR

REE
AEERAEERBEFREZIH#ES
BREHINIREEEEBRTIR -

2 MEEmT
(a) EXRfFE
NEBZ EARGFEEE

(b)

(c)

(d)

(i) ARREHTHRAEE
HAKAEBZZER
ARE-NAN=FKH
B2 AT E M7
Bk ERE M

(ii) HHEARRABHE B
TBRARRL =TT
—FEBTROZER
I EB 0.1 7T HRE
#0.097T °

BB
EHRFEERR T —_FMH
BEEVEEREREMENHD
FEWE

BAFEFARMBEERA
ZUHBEERE

BAFEFARMEREAZ
MBEERBRENESBRE
BREBMBRE LR FNRIA
THRERAFEFAEGLEZE
WA ZBHEREZ A FERG

NP

/L °©

BRERE
B B 4 o 188 AR 4 B 33,15 7
B2 BEHHER -



g () FRAF - —F IUEFER
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for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. fatf (48)
Company A H
Share  Contributed Share option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BEREY BRERE RitER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=F—-Hf—H 158,227 213,978 3,110 (181,003) 194,312
Loss for the year KEEEE = = = (18,798) (18,798)

At 31 December 2023and RZ-ZE-=f+-F=1+-H

1 January 2024 R-E-_mE-A-H 158,227
Loss for the year AFEER =
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_NE+-A=+—-A 158,227

Contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i)

(if)

the difference between the underlying net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to note
34(a); and

the reduction in issued share capital arising from the
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001,

213,978

213,978

(199,801) 175,514
(28,637) (28,637)

(228,438) 146,877

ARRZEHBRIE

(i)

AR TR B A Bl 2 M8
BREAEFHBEARRQNANK G
4@ EBEHEF 2 BT
MEBEZEZRE: &

HBMERAER D BITRA
B BT —FEBTR
H 2 BREESE0ATFEIR
7E#0.097T °
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35. LEASES

(a)

The Group as lessee
Nature of leasing activities

The Group leases a number of properties in Hong
Kong, including office premises, hostel premises and
hair salon from which it operates. All the periodic rent is

fixed over the lease term.

35. &

(@) AEEEREEAA
HEXBMEE
AEERBEHEZEYE -
BREALENHAEDE Ik
EMERELNE - HEAMRA
EHHESH/EE -

Lease liabilities HEAaE
Other
properties
leased for
own use
HENHERZ
Hih %
HK$’'000
P T IT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 11,018
Addition NE 6,183
Effect of lease modification HEBRZFE 6,083
Interest expense (note 7) FEREZ (M:E7) 918
Lease payments HERIER (12,839)

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

Effect of lease modification
Interest expense (note 7)
Lease payments

R-B-=%5+-A=+—-8BK

—E-_WFE—HF—H 11,367
HEEmrze 13,580
MBI (MFE7) 501
MHERIE (12,934)

At 31 December 2024

R-B-_ME+=-A=+—H

12,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -« %5 & Bf %5 # & Kt 5

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &% —ZE i+ = H=+—HIFFF

35. LEASES (CONTINUED)
(@) The Group as lessee (CONTINUED)
Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)
Future lease payments are due as follows:

35. HE (H)

(a)

Minimum
lease
payments
BEEENE
HK$’000
BT T

FEMMEREEA(E)
HESE(HE)
AREENKEPBERWT

Present

Interest value
FE RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

At 31 December 2024 N-EBE-UE
+=A=+—H
Not later than one year —FR
Later than one year and not $£—FE% —FR
later than two years (BRMFEBEEN)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F
+=A=+—8H
Not later than one year —F R 9,905 (334) 9,571
Later than one year and not $—HE % —F K
later than two years (BEEMEREENR) 1,818 (22) 1,796
11,723 (356) 11,367

The total cash outflows for leases (including repayment
of lease liabilities) for the year ended 31 December 2024
was HK$13,390,000 (2023: HK$ 13,291,000).

HE_Z_NF+=-_A=1+—
BIFEMHEERS TL@EE
(BREEEHEAE) ALK
13,390,000t (ZZE - =4 : &
#13,291,0007T) °
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35. LEASES (CONTINUED) 35. fHE (#)
(b) The Group as lessor (b) ATEEEARAEHBA
The Group leases its investment properties (note REBEREBESEHERHELE
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases HEREME(ME15) BEZ
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years HENT—=2=F(Z2F ==
(2023: two to three years). At the end of the reporting FIME=F) c AREHEK -
period, the Group had total future minimum lease RIFEME P ET 2 A BiH &
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with BHE  KEBRATFEE
its tenants falling due as follows: B FE R R S R E SR IR 48
BT -

2024 2023

—E_gF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Within one year BB —F 1,521 2,278

After one year but within two years #8i8—F{ETHRIBMF = 664

2,942
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

ZEBR S ERMEE

RERBELNBEHENT

Amounts
due to Bank Lease
shareholders borrowings liabilities
ERRREE HBITEE HERR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BB
(Note 26) (Note 28) (Note 35(a))
(Hizt26) (Hizt28) (H1:#35(a))
At 1 January 2023 —=f—-A—H 15,000 208,891 11,018
Changes from cash flows: Rened
Advance from a shareholder RE—BBRENDK 378 = =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE - (79,488) =
Loan interest paid BREZFE - (9,896) =
Principal element of lease payment HERR A2 - - (11,917
Interest element of lease payment HEFMFZFIBHH = = (918)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSTREEBEE 378 (89,384) (12,835)
Other changes: Hip#H)
Increase in lease liabilities from HINE iy -d
entering into new leases ?EEEFWJD = = 6,183
Effect of lease modification HEBUFZ - - 6,083
Interest expense (note 7) I ET = 9,896 918

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 W=E-=#+=-A=+—H
RZZ-ME-A-A 129,403
Changes from cash flows: Rened
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETESR (8,634) =
Loan interest paid ERERHE (6,881) =
Principal element of lease payment HEFRFZ AL HH - (12,433)
Interest element of lease payment HEFMFZFBHH - (501)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSTREEBEE (15,515) (12,934)
Other changes: Hin &
Effect of lease modification HEEYTE =

Interest expense (note 7)

M B R s (BHaE7)

At 31 December 2024

RZZE-ME+=A=1+—H

6,881

120,769
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BIHENLZS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRaGEVBERREMEBEEZRS

statements, the Group had the following significant NN FAREE REREE AT

transactions with related parties during the year: EITTINERRS :

(a) Compensation of key management personnel (a) FEEBAEZHMH
The directors are of the opinion that the key EERE TEEEBEABRRK
management personnel are the directors of the RAIZEZERE TR HWE
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in 8 FEZHLHFBIAINER
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose FI5E13(a) R M EE13(b) ©

remunerations are set out in note 13(b).
(b) Operating lease arrangements (b) REHELH

2024 2023
—ENE —E =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEETIT

Short term leases expenses for AL TRARISZNREZ

a motor vehicle paid to MEERM Y
- Smiley & Bee Limited —Smiley & Bee Limited 60
— Complex Investments Limited —ERBIREARAT 216
- Conba Management Consultant ~— 2 EEIBEER AR A 7
Limited 180
(c) Others
2024 2023
—E_mE R4
HK$°000 HK$’000
AT T BT
Company secretary service income [A]A N A alWgELZ
received from NEIMERBIA
— Raise Success Limited —Raise Success Limited 52
Corporate administration and FA TR R 2 B EITH
management service fee & RERRIEE AR DS
property management fee paid to EIEE
— Ever Crown Holdings Limited —FEEBFR AR 126
- Happy Max (Hong Kong) Limited —Z (&F#E)BRAQF 90
— Ztylez Group International — kR E R AR AR
Limited &




37.

AL (SRED) ARAF - —F IUEFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS © 4 & B4 %5 ¥t 2% Mt 5%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 e« &2 —FE U&= J=1—HIF-FEF

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Others (Continued)
These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group
and the contracting parties.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Smiley & Bee Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia, directors, are the beneficial shareholder and
directors of Complex Investments Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Conba Management
Consultant Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
trustee and director of Raise Success Limited.

Ms. Ho Ting Mei, director, is the beneficial shareholder
and director of Ever Crown Holdings Limited, Happy
Max (Hong Kong) Limited and Ztylez Group International
Limited.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

37.

38.

B AN 1-32 5 (4)

(c) EAb(E)
RERHRARERANTE
FRBKRERE -

EE TR LE ASmiley & Bee
LimitedZ B R KR ESE °

EXCHMAEENREBAEL LT
RERERERRAR ZES
BRERRES -

EECMALEREBEEERE
RERARZEGRRRES -

EE 2 M A L E A Rase
Success LimitedZ B#F < sEA
NE=E-

E=BpRAIREEEEA
Rad - BE(RE)BRAA
EakEBEBRERARZE

R85 JE B A B R 2 FEL T &

AEEAEZBMGER : TBZA™
LR (BEINERR - MR MK
ZERRER)  EERBRMESHESEA
R REBMARBEAREESETRE
BT ISE R TRBIE - 0 SKOBUE $
AEEMBRANBETHNEZE - T
NHEINEZETR T AMER AR R
7R S R R 7% B P ER B BRR -
AEEARYENERREEED
BENIES - A EEEREHS
- EBIBEBABETAE UK
B 7 R 1 H 0 A 3 Il E B PR K BE
R R 2 3R
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. WA
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38.1

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.11
for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets at FVOCI BEAFEFTAEMEERA
2 BEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEGABRZ
BIiSEE
Financial assets measured at  IZ# KA 22
amortised cost W& E
- Other receivables and —Hth R KL &
deposits
- Loan receivables —EER
- Amount due from — FEY SRR R A 2 SRR
non-controlling interest
— Amount due from associate ~ — FEES &N T FIE
- Cash and bank balances — B e RIRTTHEH

R

ctREEREEZER
RMEBAREERAE BT
BERBEBEZERES BN
_F°ﬁ%§wMLﬂZﬁﬁMMT
FEHIRFE @M - BKH
5F3.11 °

(i) HBEE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
807

51,098

6,158
2,845

10

11,690

72,608
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. B R R B N FE ET &
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 381 tREERABBEZEE)
(Continued)
(ii)  Financial liabilities (i) HKEE

2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BEETIT

Financial liabilities measured at 1% S5 i & 2

amortised cost HBasE
— Trade and other payables — ¥ L HEHMEMERR 7,982 6,009
— Amounts due to shareholders — fE{ %X B IE 15,378 15,378
- Bank borrowings (secured) —RITEE(BEA) 120,769 129,403
144,129 150,790
(iii)  Other financial liabilities (i) HitemasE

2024 2023
—E-MmE —Eo=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT

— Lease liabilities —HE&aE 12,514 11,367
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include other receivables and deposits, balances
with non-controlling interest and associate, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables,
amounts due to shareholders, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments except for
non-current loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

For disclosure purpose, the fair values of non-
current loan receivables, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings are not materially different
from their carrying values. The fair value has
been determined using discounted cash flow
model and is classified as level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. Significant inputs include expected
future cash flows and discount rate used credit
risk of the debtors and the respective group
entities, where appropriate.

38.

A5 6 B R B AR

A 75 R B o B S A E 2
)

38.1 TRMEENREBEZE(E)

(iv)

WIHBRAFEFEZ
TWMIA

YRR FEFEZS
BT ABEEMEKE
RREE - BIFERAE
mZEHRRBE AR
RBe RIRTTHER - 22X
REAMEARR - B
BERFE - HERER
RITIEE -

ERNEEHNE  %FE
BMTAERELE
R HEEBERRTE

ERRON) 2 BREEEE R
FEMEE -

SRIRBEMS - FREE
WER - HERE MR
TREZAFERAR
HETESEAER -1
FEDERBRESR
ERLET  WEIH
RAFEERSEIE - &E
REEEREERKAKRE
BEBEEREERBRN
BEHARKE S RE MR
BEK o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices which is classified as level 1
financial instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

38. s R P K A PE R

A)
(#8)
38.1

(v)

MHREEREEZER(E)

BEATEFEZzSHE

TR

B A 2 SR R A1
WHRERRBTSERS
MZAFEFAEMS
EUA 2 8B E IR
RTPEFABE 2T
BEZATE 2%
MEBHREETE wHHE
REIESHITA-

FR - BEF2ENES
EsmIT -

TREHIZAFET R
ZEBMTAEZ A (RE
RNERBRED) !

- B1E: HREE
REBERERD
52 wE(RER

)

- F2E HEEH
BEMEZ(AE
%) s (Bl
BRHEIT) AR
ZBA(TNEES
1EMBEZR
&) &

—  B3E: AFRE
AEBERZMEH
BeEREEXL
BEZBAEZX
BIRZBA) -
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A5 6 B R B AR

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. BAS B N N E R E
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#4)

(CONTINUED)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
(v)  Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1
F1E
HK$'000
BRI
As 31 December 2024 RA-B-MNF
+ZA=1+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABEZ
HBEE
Financial assets at FVOCl AT E; AR E
WAz B BEE
Net fair values FATFE

As 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F

38.1 MIBEEREEZER (H)
(v) BRAVEIFEZEE

THE(&)
REE P ER A RAE
ARTFEFEZHBEE
e BUATZAFEE
[E 4%
Level 2 Level 3 Total
EP)= HIE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BRI BRI AETTT

+-A=+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL 2R TEE AB#HZ

HEEE 51,098 - - 51,098
Financial assets at FVOC| A TESARMEE

WAZBRBEE 807 - - 807
Net fair values FATE 51,905 - - 51,905

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVOCI are listed equity
securities denominated in HK$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

RIEHE - F1ERF2EZ
B EER -

AEBZRAFEAABRZ
MBEERERAFEFAEM
EEBAZTHEEERARIA
BESHEZEMERAES - A
FEI2ZEEBESRBEH
KBz EABMETE

Bt B TEE A ER
16 T 8 4% A1 2 45 BARS 4R Lt 3
=R -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.2

38.3

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, the Group have no
significant foreign currency risk due to limited foreign
currency transactions as the Group mainly operate in
Hong Kong with majority of the business transactions
being denominated and settled in HK$.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

38. Bt
( 4

=)
NEL

38.2

38.3

5 JE B 8 B S B R

SN R B
SNERREERTAZATE
KARARBEREKHEEREE)
ks Bk o

RZEBE-_ZFR-_ZFT_F
+-A=+—8 ARAEX%EH
IKE%%@W REIBHEE
REPUBEEREE - B
INERGHER - At ANEEH
B RINERR o

R = 2 B

MERBRIOEARERIAEZA
FEIFESREGE TS X
EPmREH AR - NEEFT
2 M REBHTHIGER T E
MY AEENFHNELZ L
RITIEE - AREREHEL
AR EEPBE - A - BF
ERMNEXEHEN  LHER
VERERBEIPERNRES) -

TRIVRR A E M2 BURE
A AR LIRS R A B
EF%T AEBE 2 RE R R
H(EREIBHMNRRITEEZ
FE)HEE 2GR -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.3

38.4

Interest rate risk (Continued)

)
(#

B B R B

>

JE g 4 B e N PE R R

Ht g

¥

=

38.3 FIEEpx(E)

Increase

in loss for
the year and
accumulated

Increase

in loss for
the year and
accumulated

Increase in basis points (“bp”) H2H(TEE])
+100 bp HIN+100& 24

losses losses
FABER FABER
ES VN REEERD
2024 2023
—E_gF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
1,294

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI (note 18) and financial assets
at FVTPL (note 20).

The directors manage the Group’s exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.

ﬁ“‘hﬁﬁmo%%ﬁﬁﬁ@“%ﬂ%
g SUAKRBEAFEZ
%Zi)ii*bﬁ?%?ﬁﬁﬂ%ifﬁﬁ
ReFE

38.4 BREEHKER

XK{EWJ—L e JH B0 IR AN 7E

D E B 4R 8K R {8 B
EREBEERZS ML ER -
AEBERKE EHBRAES (D
BREAFEFAEMEZEEK
AZHBEE (ME18) RIER
FEAABSEZMBEE (ME
20) B ¥ R AE T E

""""" FERE -
BEEHLETERR KRR HRELN
REMRE  UEBKAEREZE

e WERBERZELHTE
AR - NEREMEEHE SR
ErRER o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.4

38.5

Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if the quoted market price for
the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10% (2023:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$300 (2023: HK$81,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2023: 10%) higher with all other variables
remain unchanged, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would decrease by HK$4,300,000
(2023: HK$5,110,000). A 10% (2023: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL, with all other variables
held constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

38. BATS
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.5 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its loan receivables, other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from non-controlling interest
and associate and bank balances. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial

instruments are their carrying values.

In respect of loan receivables, other receivables,
deposits and amount due from non-controlling interest
and associate, the Group considers the background
and regularly monitors the financial condition of the
counterparties to assess the recoverability of the
outstanding balances. The management does not
expect any loss allowance from non-performance by the
counterparties and assessed that the ECLs in respect
of these balances were immaterial at the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, no ECL allowance was

provided for as at 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because majority of the bank balances are deposited in
reputable banks, for which the Group consider to have
low credit risk. There was no history of default in relation

to these financial institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a

desirable level.

38.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities. Note 3.1 to
the consolidated financial statements explains the
management’s plans for managing liquidity needs of
the Group to enable the Group to continue to meet its

obligations as they fall due.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)
38.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+=A=1-A
Trade and other payables EERAMERER
Amounts due to shareholders ~ ERTTREZUE

Lease liabilties HERE

Bank borrowings including those  /TEE (ARSAREX
contain a repayment on demand  (EE KR HREE)

On
demand

BEX
HK$ 000
AR

38.

Within
1 year

-FR

HK$000
AR

S5 JEL o 5 B S (B

(4)

38.6 MEBIELEM(E)
RBEHR - AEEEREH

REBRBEERBZHBHAED

HEREREIIMT

Total
contractual Total
In2to  More than undiscounted carrying
5 years 5years  cash flows amounts
ANRER

Z2If BBLE WEREAE REfE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT 8T BT AR

clause (note) (M) 113,483 122,075 120,769
128,861 158,544 156,643
At 31 December 2023 R-E-Z#+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables EERAMERER - 6,009 - - 6,000 6,000
Amount due to shareholders ERRRE 15,378 - - - 15,378 15,378
Lease liabilties EBfE 9,905 1818 - 11,723 11,367
Bank borrowings including those  /TEE (BRSAREX
contain a repayment on demand  (EE K7 HREE)
clause (note) () 121,687 663 2,650 6,204 131,004 129,403
137,065 16,577 4468 6,004 164,404 162,157

Note:  For bank borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call

the loans with immediate effect.

Wizt : HRBARTAIZEBISTE
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

38.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note: (Continued)
The following table summaries the maturity analysis of bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

38 /\i{,JEL‘le”/E/A}H!& N EFTE
(#8)
38.6 MEBESER (&)
M : (48)

TR R B SRE RGN RITE
ERBERBRIII cEZEERABHZ
FEE ST - ZECERBERE N E
AEZAMENK . Bl Z2F@BER L
MEBA DT RERER ] KA
EAEBzEEAR K RAEEZ
MR - BEERA/WITTRATREITE
ERBHERANFER - EFHEEZS
BITEFERERBEAMBZETENR
HEREE -

Maturity analysis - bank borrowings subject to repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HERERRERTZRTEEERAMZHMALH

Within
1 year
—£R

HK$'000
AETT

31 December 2024 “E-ME+=A=1+-H 111,344

31 December 2023 Z2Z=F+ZA=1-H 115,716

In2to
5 years

ZZhE
HK$'000
BETT

4,209

7,485

Total
contractual Total
More than  undiscounted carrying
5years cash outflows amount
ANRER
BBLE ReREAR REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
- 115,553 113,483
1,697 124,898 121,687
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2024 amounted to approximately HK$220,653,000
(2023: HK$252,474,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.
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BEYEFR

Investment Properties BEYHE
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
15 HE HE EEmE AEBEEMN
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPIE M ABE44RITEERER LUK [EES PHITHE 349F R 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
BPIRFEA SR 55519-5975% [HES RHIHE 8,110 5 R 100%
L5 %38-78-B5%
R E 4 % % 565-605-C5f
SR E M EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 ~ P12-09 %
P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, One Central Residences, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58, Macau leasehold
RPID I BT K S R 585 =5k B 5 261ET1/BEE F=E HHIE 1,359F 7R 100%
G/F of nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 615 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan, leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
EIRKEAT105- 1075 N ROBZHERFE 135Kk Mm% REMEE 615F R 100%

F136HER
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